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Component 
 
PROVISIONS 
 
Qualification para 54 
 
Provision for pro-rata bonuses of R341 512 is included in provisions in the statement of financial position and note 17 to the financial statements. 
The municipality did not review and adjust this provision to reflect the current best estimate at year end as required by GRAP 19, Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The municipality’s records did not permit the application of alternative procedures. Consequently, it 
was not possible to conclude on the validity, accuracy and completeness of provisions as disclosed in the statement of financial position and note 
17 to the financial statements 

Root Cause Action Plan Responsible person (s) Timeframe Progress to date 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

(Satisfactory or 
not) 

Provision for 
pro-rata 
bonuses 
incorrectly 
recorded 

Review and adjust this provision 
to reflect the current best 
practice in terms of GRAP 19 

Expenditure 
Accountant 

28 February 2012   
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Component 
 
COMMITMENTS 
 
Qualification para 55 
 
No committed expenditure for the current year is disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements as the municipality did not prepare an updated 
list of commitments at year end. The municipality’s records did not permit the application of alternative procedures. As a result, I am unable to 
conclude on the full effect of the understatement of commitments. 
 

Root Cause Action Plan Responsible person(s) Timeframe Progress to date 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

(Satisfactory or 
not) 

Failure to 
maintain 
commitment 
schedule 

Identify all service providers 
owed and projects incomplete 
at 30th June 2011 and create 
schedule.  

Chief & Expenditure 
Accountants 

28 February 2012   
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Component 
 
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
Qualification para 56 
 
The municipality did not assess the contingent liabilities from the prior year disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements to determine whether 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential has become probable. This assessment is required by GRAP 19, 
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. No contingent liabilities were disclosed for the current year. Even after performing 
alternative procedures, sufficient appropriate audit evidence relating to the completeness and valuation of contingent liabilities and possible 
provisions and the relating expenditure that should be recognised could not be obtained.   
 

Root Cause Action Plan Responsible person(s) Timeframe Progress to date 
Portfolio of Evidence 
(Satisfactory or not) 

No schedule 
for contingent 
liabilities is 
maintained 

Investigate whether any 
contingency liability existed at 
30th June and report to council. 
Ensure that adequate provision 
for that is catered for during the 
adjustment budget.  

Chief & Legal and 
Compliance Manager. 

25 January 2012   
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Component 
 
MATERIAL LOSSES 
 
Qualification para 57 
 
Distribution losses relating to the supply of electricity were not monitored during the year and were not disclosed in the financial statements as 
required by section 125(2)(d) of the MFMA. As a result, even after performing alternative procedures, sufficient appropriate audit evidence could 
not be obtained to ascertain the full extent of any distribution losses to be reported. 
 

Root Cause Action Plan 
Responsible 

person(s) 
Timeframe Progress to date 

Portfolio of Evidence 
(Satisfactory or not) 

Non 
monitoring of 
distribution 
losses 

Develop a loss register and 
disclose them as such in the AFS 

Technical Services 
Manager 

31 March 2012 Consult Technical 
Services for Guidance 
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Component 
 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
 
Qualification para 58, 59, 60 
 
Cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in the statement of financial position, cash flow statement and note 14 to the financial statements is 
R36.2m. Presentation of a cash flow statement, summarizing the entity’s operating, investing and financing activities, is required by GRAP 2, Cash 
flow statements. Reconciliations of cashbook balances to the statements received from the bank accounts held by the municipality for the year 
were not completed for all cashbook accounts. In the instances where reconciliations were prepared, these were not performed properly as there 
were reconciling items which were not taken into account. As a result, the cash flows for the year could not be reconciled to the cash and cash 
equivalents balance at year end. 
Amounts used in the presentation of the cash flow statement were not classified correctly in terms of GRAP 2. The accounting records of the 
municipality are incomplete and inaccurate and as a result, I am unable to conclude on the full extent of the errors within this statement. It is 
estimated that the net cash flows from operating activities is understated by R28.7m, the net cash flows from financing activities is understated by 
R20.8m and the net cash flows from financing activities is understated by R53 629. Resulting from the matters I have discussed in par 58 above, 
there is an amount of R7.8m that is not supported by sufficient appropriate audit evidence. 
There was no satisfactory alternative procedures that I could perform to obtain reasonable assurance that the cash flow statement fairly presents 
the cash inflows and cash outflows of the municipality for the year. 
   

Root Cause Action Plan 
Responsible 

person(s) 
Timeframe Progress to date 

Portfolio of Evidence 
(Satisfactory or not) 

Cash flow 
statement in 
AFS not fairly 
presented 

Prepare cash flow statement in 
terms of GRAP 2 

CFO & Chief 
Accountant 

31 January 2012   
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Component 
 
COUNCILLOR’S ARREAR CONSUMER ACCOUNTS 
 
Qualification para 61 
 
Section 124(1)(b) of the MFMA requires the notes to the financial statements of a municipality to include particulars of any arrears owed by 
individual councilors to the municipality for rates or services and which at any time during the relevant financial year were outstanding for more 
than 90 days, including the names of those councilors. Councillor’s arrear consumer accounts disclosed in note 45 to the financial statements is 
R48 408. The list of councilors which was provided was not sufficient and appropriate and I could not verify the completeness and accuracy of the 
disclosure. The municipality’s records did not permit the application of alternative procedures.  
 

Root Cause Action Plan 
Responsible 

person (s) 
Timeframe Progress to date 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

(Satisfactory or 
not) 

Amount per 
general ledger 
does not agree 
to the financial 
statements and 
no 
reconciliation 
between 
financial 
statements and 
accounting 
records 

Prepare the list of all 
councillors with arrear 
accounts and reconcile it with 
general ledger 

Chief & 
Expenditure 
Accountants 

30 June 2012   
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Component 
 
MUNICIPAL OFFICIAL’S ARREAR CONSUMER ACCOUNTS 
 
Qualification para 62 
 
Schedule 2 of the MSA states that a staff member of a municipality may not owe the municipality for rates and services charges for a period 
exceeding 3 months. The municipality is required to deduct any outstanding amounts from a staff member’s salary after this period. The 
municipality did not deduct any outstanding arrear amounts during the year and no staff debtors have been disclosed in the financial statements. 
The full extent of the details not disclosed could not be determined. Consequently, I am unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to 
satisfy myself as to the valuation of the staff debtors to be disclosed in the financial statements. 
 

Root Cause Action Plan 
Responsible person 

(s) 
Timeframe Progress to date 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

(Satisfactory or 
not) 

Staff debtors 
not disclosed in 
the financial 
statements 

Disclose these debtors in the 
financial statements and 
deduct the outstanding arrear 
amounts  

Chief & Expenditure 
Accountants 

31 March 2012   
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Component 
 
DEPARTMENTAL DEBTORS 
Qualification para 63 
 
Section 123(1)(b)(ii) of the MFMA requires that the financial statements of a municipality to disclose information on any allocations made by the 
municipality to any other organ of state. The municipality did not disclose information relating to amounts owed by government departments in 
the financial statements. The accounting records are incomplete as the debtors system did not fully integrate with it. Consequently, I am unable to 
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy myself as to the valuation of the departmental debtors to be disclosed in the financial 
statements. 
.  

Root Cause Action Plan 
Responsible 

person(s) 
Timeframe Progress to date 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

(Satisfactory or 
not) 

Departmental 
debtors not 
disclosed in the 
financial 
statements 

Raise these debtors and 
disclose them in the financial 
statements 

Chief & Revenue 
Accountants 

31 March 2012   
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AUDIT ACTION PLAN/PROGRESS /STATUS REPORT 2009/2010 

No. Audit Finding 
Recommended 

Action 
Implementation Plan 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Progress/ 
Status 

Contact 
Person 

Responsibl
e Manager 

Due Date & 
Status 

MATTERS AFFECTING THE AUDITOR’S REPORT 

IMMOVABLE PROPERTY –RATES 

1 The rates revenue of R 3.1 
million is disclosed in the 
statement of financial 
performance and note 23 
to the financial 
statements.  As no 
reconciliation of the 
valuation roll was 
performed, the valuation 
roll did not agree to the 
details on the system.  
Consequently, I am 
unable to verify the 
completeness of this 
amount. There were no 
satisfactory alternative 
procedures that I could 
perform to obtain 
reasonable assurance 
that all properties were 
properly recorded and it 
was impractical to obtain 
the effect on rates 
income and consumer 
debtors.  

Perform 
reconciliation of 
property values 
per valuation roll 
to property 
values per 
system  

 

Reconciliation of 
individual debtor 
accounts to valuation roll  
2009/2010 and 2010/2011                                                                 
Reconciliation of total 
valuation roll to total 
property rates charged 
on debtors system  
2009/2010 and 2010/2011                                
Monthly reconciliation 
between total property 
rates charged and 
valuation roll                
Preparation of file with 
hard copies of all 
reconciliations, signed off 
by CFO          Verification 
of the different 
categories of tariffs 
between the approved 
tariff schedule and the 
debtors accounts.   
Reconciliation of the 
monthly amounts 
charged for property 
rates to the ledger 
control account and the 
ledger income account 
for property rates             

1 
Reconciliation currently taking 
place with assistance of Mr 
Boateng, the valuator, Mr 
Groenewald, consultant 
appointed to assist finance, Mr 
McEwen, DBSA, Quin, Sebata, 
and accountant revenue. Mr 
Boateng identified differences 
on a spreadsheet and the mun 
is currently opening accounts 
for debtors not yet on the 
debtors system. 

Monthly reconciliations were 
prepared up to May by 
accountant revenue and 
SEBATA. Differences followed 
up by MrGroenewald, CFO and 
Accountant. Journals need to 
be processed. 

Tariffs charged were checked 
by CFO and Accountant, Tariff 
were captured as 0.993 
instead of 0.933. Debtors were 
overcharged and therefore a 
credit can be passed by the 
mun. shall be corrected before 
July 2011 billing. 

 

Revenue 
Accountant 

CFO 15th August 
2011 

Note : 
Valuation roll 
balanced to 
billing 
system 
except for 
the farms 
and the 
supplementa
ry roll. 

 

Billing for 
August 2011 
where rates 
had been 
raised to be 
balanced 
with ledger 
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No. Audit Finding 
Recommended 

Action 
Implementation Plan 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Progress/Status 
Contact 
Person 

Responsible 
Manager 

Due Date & 
status 

INTEREST CHARGED 

2 Interest charged on 
outstanding consumer 
debtors as disclosed in 
the statement of financial 
performance is R365 013.  
The municipality did not 
apply the correct interest 
rate during the year on 
outstanding debtors.  
Additionally, the interest 
on debtors is being 
calculated by the debtors 
system without 
cognizance of the in 
duplum rule in the 
National Credit Act, 
Section 103(5), which 
holds that interest stops 
running when the unpaid 
interest equals the 
outstanding capital. As a 
result, the estimated 
effect of this is a 
misstatement of revenue 
and consumer debtors 
could not be determined. 
There were no 
satisfactory alternative 
procedures that I could 
perform to obtain 
reasonable assurance 
that all properties were 
properly recorded and it 
was impractical to obtain 
the effect on rates 
income. 

Input correct 
interest rate into 
system 
 
System to be 
adjusted to 
ensure additional 
interest is not 
charged when 
the unpaid 
interest equals 
the outstanding 
capital 

The CFO to monitor the 
interest rate charged on a 
Monthly basis.  To 
investigate the interest 
charged on individual 
debtors’ outstanding 
capital to ensure that 
monthly interest is 
calculated according to 
the “in duplum” rule.  

1 Interest rate were 
checked and adjusted 
according to prime rate 
by CFO on a monthly 
basis.’Induplum’ rule 
could not be investigated 
due to lack of available 
time and the extent of 
the problem./ 
Outstanding 

CFO CFO 31 July 2011 
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No. Audit Finding 
Recommended 

Action 
Implementation Plan 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Progress/Status 
Contact 
Person 

Responsible 
Manager 

Due Date & 
status 

ELECTRICITY LOSSES 

3. Electricity revenue of 
R3.3 million is included in 
service charges of R5.7 
million as disclosed in the 
statement of financial 
performance and note 24 
to the financial 
statements. I could not 
verify this amount due to 
supporting 
documentation not being 
submitted for audit 
purposes.  Also, 
distribution losses were 
not monitored during the 
year.  Consequently, 
there were no 
satisfactory alternative 
procedures that I could 
perform to obtain 
reasonable assurance 
that electricity revenue is 
properly recorded and it 
was not possible to 
obtain the effect on 
electricity income and 
consumer debtors.  

Monthly 
monitoring of 
distribution 
losses  
 
 

Perform daily 
reconciliations between 
Conlog, the amounts 
banked and the amounts 
receipted on the ledger 
account for electricity 
sales.                                                                                                                                                                                                
Perform monthly 
reconciliation between 
electricity purchased and 
electricity sold to 
determine electricity 
losses.                                                                                                                               
Prepare file with hard 
copies of the 
reconciliations, signed off 
by CFO for audit 
purposes. 
 

1  
Reconciliations to be 
updated to 30 June 2011 
Daily Reconciliations 
were performed for June 
2009 and June 2010 and 
differences accounted for 
in ledger. Reconciliations 
for 2010/2011 in progress/ 
Outstanding 

Revenue 
Accountant 

CFO 10th August 
2011 
Process in 
progress 
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No. Audit Finding 
Recommended 

Action 
Implementation Plan 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Progress/Status 
Contact 
Person 

Responsible 
Manager 

Due Date & 
status 

DEBTORS 

4 The existence of the 
amount of R30.8 million 
for municipal debtors as 
disclosed in note 13 to the 
financial statements 
could not be verified as a 
deeds search failed to 
provide evidence over 
certain debtors.  No 
alternative procedures 
could be performed. 

Ensure rates are 
billed to the 
registered 
property owner 

A data cleansing exercise 
to be conducted on all 
Municipal debtors.       
Verify how the debt 
collection policy deals 
with indigents 

1 Data cleansing project 
almost completed. 
Service provider 
appointed to load 
municipal property on 
software and link it to 
title deeds. Bulk deeds 
search will also be done 
on yearend. Report ready 
to be submitted to 
Management/ Project 
completed 
 
Service provider 
requested date for 
presentation 

Revenue 
accountant  

CFO 31 July 2011 
 
 

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

5 In terms of IAS 39, trade 
and other receivables 
should be stated at their 
present value in the 
financial statements as at 
year end, with the 
difference between the 
nominal amount and the 
present value recognized 
as interest income over 
the financing period. 
Receivables were not 
present valued at year 
end which has resulted in 
an overstatement of 
accounts receivables of 
R3.3 million. 

Management to 
review annual 
financial 
statements 
before being 
submitted for 
audit 

  Outstanding   15th August 
2011 
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No. Audit Finding 
Recommended 

Action 
Implementation Plan 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Progress/Status 
Contact 
Person 

Responsible 
Manager 

Due Date & 
status 

WATER SERVICE PROVISION 

6 The functions of water 
and sanitation were 
transferred to the district 
municipality in 2003.  
However, the 
municipality continues to 
deliver the services to the 
community.  Note 11 to 
the financial statements 
discloses the assets, 
liabilities, income and 
expenditure relating to 
the water and sewerage 
function totaling R32 
million.  I am unable to 
conclude if this amount is 
correct as not all debtors 
may exist, all assets have 
been identified and 
transferred and all 
revenue and related 
expenditure have been 
accounted for correctly.  
No alternative 
procedures could be 
performed. 

Address SLA with 
CHDM 
 
Perform monthly 
reconciliation of 
CHDM loan 
account  

CHDM has appointed a 
service provider to draw 
up a new SLA for 201011.      
Arrange a meeting with 
the CHDM to discuss the 
terms and conditions of 
the SLA and if those are 
not favourable to the 
ELM, the ELM to consider 
not to accept the 
responsibility of being a 
WSP for the District. 
The ELM to ensure 
liability for assets remains 
with WSA 

1 SLA signed CFO CFO                   
Technical 
service 
Manager; 
Legal& 
Compliance 

31 August 
2011 
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No. Audit Finding 
Recommended 

Action 
Implementation Plan 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Progress/Status 
Contact 
Person 

Responsible 
Manager 

Due Date & 
status 

VAT 

7. Amounts reflected on the VAT 
returns for the year under 
review did not agree to the 
amounts reflected in the general 
ledger and I was unable to 
reconcile an amount of R4.3 
million.  Consequently, I was 
unable to verify the adequacy of 
the value added tax receivable 
of R3.9 million as disclosed in 
the statement of financial 
position and note 12 to the 
financial statements.  

Perform monthly 
reconciliation of 
amounts per VAT 
201 and amounts 
per general 
ledger  

 Daily checking of correct 
treatment of the input vat 
whilst capturing the 
invoices to the financial 
system.                                                                 
Monthly calculation of 
input vat claimable 
according to the total 
payments made and the 
amount of input vat 
recorded in the input vat 
account.                                                                   
Implementing and 
maintaining a register of 
non-valid vat invoices for 
follow-up. 
 

1 VAT returns 
submitted up to 
30th June 2011. 
VAT 
reconciliations 
completed up to 
30th June 2011 
 
Outstanding 

Accountant 
Expenditure 

CFO 31 July 2011 
 
 

8 Amounts reflected on the VAT 
returns for the year under 
review did not agree to the 
amounts reflected in the general 
ledger and I was unable to 
reconcile an amount of R4.3 
million.  Consequently, I was 
unable to verify the adequacy of 
the value added tax receivable 
of R3.9 million as disclosed in 
the statement of financial 
position and note 12 to the 
financial statements.  

Perform monthly 
reconciliation of 
amounts per VAT 
201 and amounts 
per general 
ledger  

Monthly journals to clear 
the input and output vat 
accounts to the SARS 
refund account, and 
agreeing with the 
submitted VAT returns. 
Monthly verification of vat 
invoices claimed as per the 
vat returns.                                                                       
Weekly follow up of non-
valid vat invoices as per the 
register. 
 

1 Journals were 
passed for this 
financial year 
according to the 
vat returns 
submitted. 
Journals for the 
previous year 
had been 
prepared and will 
be processed 
during the week 
Outstanding 

Accountant 
Expenditure 

CFO 31 July 2011 
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No. Audit Finding 
Recommended 

Action 
Implementation Plan 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Progress/Statu
s 

Contact 
Person 

Responsible 
Manager 

Due Date & 
status 

9 The municipality has claimed 
value added tax deductions 

based on invoices that are not in 
terms of the requirements of 

the value added tax legislation.  
Consequently, I am unable to 

conclude on the accuracy of the 
general expenditure as disclosed 

in the statement of financial 
performance and in note 27 to 

the annual financial statements 
of R8.7 million. 

Communicate 
requirements of 

VAT Act to all 
relevant staff 

  Relevant staff 
informed about 
vat 
requirements. 
Transactions on 
payments list 
are scrutinized 
on monthly 
basis by 
accountant to 
see if vat is 
claimable. New 
invoices are 
obtained from 
service 
providers if not 
valid/ IA 
performs audit 

  Ongoing 
 
 
 

LEAVE 

10 The leave balance of employees 
could not be verified as the leave 
records of the municipality have 
not been adequately maintained.  
Also, the attendance registers for 

employees and full time 
councillors was not adequately 

monitored. As a result, I am 
unable to conclude if the accrual 
of R1 million as disclosed in the 
statement of financial position 

and note 18 to the financial 
statements and the related 

employee cost as disclosed in the 
statement of financial 

performance and note 28 to the 
financial statements is misstated.  

Leave records 
to be updated 

timeously 
 

Maintain an 
attendance 

register for all 
full time 

councilors 
 
 
 
 
 

A leave audit was 
performed on 100% of 

leave balances.    SEBATA 
has been contacted to load 
the verified balances to the 
system and the necessary 
adjustments were made.  

Corporate Services 
Manager to monitor the 

completeness and 
correctness of the leave 
balances  on a quarterly 

basis 

1 Outstanding HR Officer Corporate 
Services 
Manager 

31 March 2011 
Completed 
but SEBATA 
to follow up 
on issues re 
system – 15 
August 2011 
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No. Audit Finding 
Recommended 

Action 
Implementation Plan 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Progress/Status 
Contact 
Person 

Responsible 
Manager 

Due Date and 
status 

AFS 

11 An amount of R2.9 million was 
not included in the trade payables 
amount disclosed in the 
statement of financial position 
and note 18 to the financial 
statements.  I am therefore 
unable to verify the 
completeness of the trade 
payables amount. 

Management to 
review annual 
financial 
statements 
before being 
submitted for 
audit 

  Provision for 
creditors list will 
be scrutinized 
before 
submission of 
AFS. Prior year 
adjustments will 
be performed 
according to 
audit report/ To 
be rectified 
during Audit 

  5th August 
2011 
 
 

PAYROLL 

12 The municipality did not calculate 
PAYE accurately. The SARS 
accrual of R901 005 has not been 
raised with the corresponding 
staff debtors.  

Correct 
formulas to be 
inputted into 
the payroll 
system with 
specific 
reference to 
those relating to 
lump sum 
payouts 

Arrange a meeting with AG 
in order to discuss the 
finding further as our 
system is loaded with the 
correct formulas 

1 IRP 5’s were 
forwarded to 
AG’s office. One 
recalculation was 
performed by 
AG, awaiting 
further 
responses. The 
CFO’s IRP 5 
showed a 
difference of 
R135./ Sebata had 
solved the 
problem and 
PAYE are now 
correctly 
calculated 

CFO CFO 31 August 2011 
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No. Audit Finding 
Recommended 

Action 
Implementation Plan 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Progress/Status 
Contact 
Person 

Responsible 
Manager 

Due Date & 
status 

LAND OWNERSHIP 

13 Ownership of land and buildings 
as disclosed in the statement of 
financial position and in note 4 to 
the financial statements of R113 
million could not be confirmed as 
title deeds could not be obtained 
for certain properties.  Also, 
investment property is disclosed 
in the statement of financial 
position and in note 3 to the 
financial statements.  The 
municipality has not identified 
and separately disclosed the 
number of such properties held in 
a note to the financial statements 
and is therefore included within 
the land and buildings as 
disclosed. 

Obtain and 
retain title 
deeds for all 
properties 
reflected in the 
fixed asset 
register  
 
Management to 
review annual 
financial 
statements 
before being 
submitted for 
audit 

The Municipality has 
appointed NPM Geomatics  
to attend to a Land Audit 
to address the matter of 
land within the 
Municipality. 
A land Register will be 
developed arising from this 

1 Project in 
process – 
alignment  to 
valuation roll in 
process – March 
2011  

Legal & 
Compliance 
Manager 

Legal & 
Compliance 
Manager 

Completed 
phase 1 - MAY 
2011 – 
awaiting final 
report – 31 
August 2011 

INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS 

14. Infrastructure assets of R44 
million as disclosed in note 4 to 
the financial statements could 
not be verified as the municipality 
has not captured all the relevant 
information on the geographical 
information system. 

Implement MIS / 
GIS systems 

  In progress     
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No. Audit Finding 
Recommended 

Action 
Implementation Plan 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Progress/Status 
Contact 
Person 

Responsible 
Manager 

Due Date & 
status 

PAYROLL 

15. The municipality’s payroll system 
failed to fully integrate with the 
accounting system which has 
resulted in a variance of R637 191.  
Consequently, it was therefore 
not possible to determine the 
validity, accuracy and 
completeness of employee 
related costs as disclosed in the 
statement of financial 
performance and notes 28 and 29 
to the financial statements. 

Perform 
monthly 
reconciliations 
between payroll 
system and 
general ledger 

Monthly reconciliations 
between the ledger 
control accounts and the 
payroll must be 
performed and signed 
off by the CFO.                                                                 
Monthly reconciliations 
between the total 
payroll and the 
expenditure votes for 
salaries must be 
performed and signed 
off by the CFO. 
 

1 All monthly 
recons of payroll 
has been 
performed and 
checked. 
Awaiting 
correctional 
journals to be 
authorized. 
Recon of total 
payroll to 
expenditure 
votes must still 
be performed at 
yearend/ 
Reconciliation 
completed for 
year end 
Process being 
monitored 

Accountant 
Expenditure 

CFO Ongoing – 31 
August 2011 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 319 

No. Audit Finding 
Recommended 

Action 
Implementation Plan 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Progress/Status 
Contact 
Person 

Responsible 
Manager 

Due Date & 
status 

EXPENDITURE SCM 

16. Expenditure made in 
contravention of the supply chain 
management requirements 
amounting to R18.3 million was 
identified. The amount was not 
included in irregular expenditure 
and disclosed in a note to the 
financial statements resulting in 
irregular expenditure being 
misstatement. 

Requirements 
of supply chain 
management 
policy to be 
communicated 
to relevant staff 
Management to 
review annual 
financial 
statements 
before being 
submitted for 
audit 

A register to be 
developed and 
maintained to record all 
irregular expenditure for 
disclosure purposes 

1 A register 
developed by the 
AG’s office was 
distributed to the 
managers and 
relevant staff. 
Must be followed 
up at yearend. 
MrGroenewald 
has asked interns 
to work through 
payment 
documents to 
check for 
compliance/ In 
progress 

CFO All HOD’s 31 August 
2011 
 
 

 
  



 

 320 

No. Audit Finding 
Recommended 

Action 
Implementation Plan 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Progress/Status 
Contact 
Person 

Responsible 
Manager 

Due Date & 
status 

UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE 

17. Unauthorized expenditure was 
incurred during the current year 
of R257 950 as a result of 
overspending on compensation 
of employees in the Refuse 
Cleaning Services vote.  This 
overspending is due to a grant 
not yet received from the district 
municipality before year end. 

Overspending on 
any vote to be 
reported to 
municipal council 
timeously 
Management to 
review annual 
financial 
statements 
before being 
submitted for 
audit 

  Budget control 
are exercised on 
a daily basis. All 
expenditure 
votes will be 
scrutinized at 
yearend to 
ensure that no 
unauthorized 
transactions are 
included in the 
ledger/ Ongoing 
process 

  31 August 2011 
– ongoing 
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NORTHERN CLUSTER AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT: Emalahleni Municipality  
 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2011 
 
We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 30 June 2011. 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE 
 

NO MEMBER NAME NUMBER OF MEETINGS  ATTENDED 2010/2011 

1 Tracy Putzier (Chairman) 7 

2 Vaughn Harley 1 

3 Gerrie Groenewald 6 

 
The Audit Committee acts under the proviso detailed within the contract for the Northern 
Cluster within Chris Hani District Municipality.  This represents an agreement between the 
municipalities of Lukhanji, Emalahleni & Sahkisizwe Municipalities. 
 
Emalahleni Municipality operates according to a partially functioning Audit Committee. During 
the second half of the year challenges were experienced when 2 of the 3 committee members 
resigned and no quorum was available to resume these meetings. Unfortunately these 
vacancies were not filled by the Municipality and the Audit Committee was then not able to 
function and execute all of their responsibilities in the manner required. 
 
These resignations occurred for various reasons.  In the one instance it occurred for personal 
reasons and in the other, the other audit committee member resigned due to a conflict of 
interest. In this instance he had accepted a contract position within the Finance Department of 
a Municipality serviced by this committee and as such he could no longer serve as an Audit 
Committee member. 
 
The Audit Committee was initially comprised of three independent members until both 
Mr Hartley and Mr Grunewald resigned.  Mr Hartley last attended an Audit Committee meeting 
on 15 July 2010 and G Groenewald attended his last meeting on 10 May 2011.   
 
In examining the composition of this committee it is noted that: 

 Ms Putzier and Mr Hartley were appointed by the Cluster on 01 May 2009; 

 Mr Groenewald had been nominated to replace Mr Peter McEwen, who resigned in the 

previous year.  Mr McEwen had been in possession of a contract with the cluster which 

had a validity period of 21 April 2010 up to a maximum period of 3 years thereafter. 
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Meetings of the Audit Committee are attended by the Municipal Manager, Chief Financial 
Officer, Legal Compliance Manager, Internal Audit and the Auditor-General.  These occur by 
standing invitation. Senior Managers are required to attend only when items pertaining to their 
departments are addressed. 
 
As per the function and responsibilities of the Audit Committee, the Chairperson was required 
to be available to attend Council meetings and to report on the activities of the Committee (by 
invitation from the council). In the year ending 30 June 2011 no such invitation was extended to 
the audit committee and hence no council meetings were attended by this committee. 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY 
 
We report that we have adopted appropriate terms of reference in line with the requirements 
of prescribed legislation. We further report that we have conducted our affairs in compliance 
with these terms of reference and have drafted a Charter. 
 
THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS 
 
In line with the legislative and Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit provided the 
Audit Committee and management with reports pertaining to the appropriateness and 
effectiveness of internal controls. Through the Risk Management Process an assessment was 
conducted and corrective actions and suggested enhancements to improve these controls and 
processes were identified and made. 
 
From various reports from the internal auditors, the Audit report on the Annual Financial 
Statements and the management report of the Auditor-General, it was noted that the system of 
internal controls was not effective for the year under review. Reasons provided for this and 
non-effective functioning included shortfalls in the staffing capacity, (a factor that is often 
linked to staff numbers in a small entity)and the delayed response times from management to 
address findings in these internal reports. 
 
Action plans were developed by the Management of the Municipality to respond to matters 
dealt with in the Auditor-General’s report for 2009/2010. The Audit Committee requested that 
updates on the action plans be tabled for discussion at each Audit Committee. Unfortunately 
reporting was required for the entire year under review and it is noted that this report did not 
ultimately address all issues required.  
 
THE QUALITY OF ANNUAL MANAGEMENT AND  
MONTHLY / QUARTERLY REPORTS SUBMITTED IN TERMS OF THE MFMA 
 
The Audit Committee was not satisfied with the quality of reporting.  Monthly and quarterly 
reports were not submitted timeously to the Audit Committee during the year under review.  
These issues were duly noted and addressed our Audit Committee meetings.   This was 
necessitated as the absence of receiving such reports renders one unable to comment on both 
content and quality thereof. 
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It should also be noted that some aspects pertaining to performance reporting were not always 
considered satisfactory, making it difficult to assess the Municipality. Performance reporting 
will become a focus area for the Audit Committee in the future, in order to ensure that issues 
are addressed as they arise and thus to alleviate the large number of issues that need to be 
addressed by the end of the financial year. 
 
Notwithstanding we are pleased to report that the Municipality has committed itself to 
establishing a Performance Audit Committee in the new financial year. This committee will be 
required to facilitate improved monitoring within the Municipality. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Municipality developed and adopted a Risk Management Strategy during the year under 
review. 
 
EVALUATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
It is noted that the Audit Committee has: 

 Reviewed and discussed the annual financial statements included in the Annual Report with 
the Auditor-General, the Accounting Officer and the CFO. 

 Reviewed the Auditor-General’s management report and management’s response thereto;  

 Reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices; 

 Reviewed Emalahleni Municipalities compliance with legal and regulatory provisions; and 

 Adjustments resulting from the Audit have not been removed. 
 
We concur with and accept the Auditor-General’s report on the Annual Financial Statements, 
and are of the opinion that the audited Annual Financial Statements should be accepted and 
read together with the report of the Auditor-General. 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT 
 
We are satisfied that the internal audit function is operating effectively and that it has 
addressed the risks pertinent to the Municipality it audits.  
 
AUDITOR-GENERAL 
 
We have met with the Auditor –General to ensure that there are no unresolved issues. 
 
Report compiled by 
 
Tracey Putzier 
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSON 
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5.1 Overview of the Executive and Council Functions  
 

a. Political Structure 
 
 As per s9(b) of the Municipal Structures Act, Act No. 117 of 1998, Emalahleni Municipality 

is a democratically elected Category B Municipality.  It has a Collective Executive System 
of governance which incorporates a Ward Participatory System. 

 
 Municipal elections were conducted during 2011 and a new municipal Council was 

elected for the 2011-2016 period of office.  This report will detail the structure of both the 
“outgoing” and the “new” Council in order to give perspective to the changes in 
political office, structure and governance.   

 
 
  2006- 2011 Council                                                     2011 – 2016 Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In each Council: 
 

 The Speaker and Executive were elected at the first sitting of Council; 

 The Mayor represents the political head of the institution and was elected from the 
Executive Committee; 

 The Chief Whip of Council was elected by Council as a representative from the majority 
party; and 

 The role of the Speaker is to coordinate Council activities and meetings. 

 

  

31 Councillors 
Ward Councillors:  16 ANC 
 
Proportional Representative 
Councillors:   

12 ANC 
  1 UDM 
  1 PAC 
  1 Independent 

31 Councillors 
Ward Councillors:   16 ANC 

 
Proportional Representative 
Councillors:   
   12 ANC 
   1 UDM 
   1 PAC 
   1 Independent 

31 Councillors sworn into office in 
2006 

34 Councillors sworn into office in 
May 2011 

34 Councillors 
Ward Councillors: 17 ANC 
 
Proportional Representative 
Councillors: 
   13 ANC 
   1 UDM 
   1 COPE 
   1 DA 
   1 PAC 
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Executive Committee  
 
The Executive Committee (EXCO) is provided with the mandate to recommend and resolve 
Council matters.    EXCO is chaired by the Mayor and is scheduled to meet monthly. 
 
EXCO is provided with delegated authority from the Council and this is awarded in order to 
facilitate decision-making and action taken regarding municipal issues (recommendations 
/resolving municipal issues during the time in-between the quarterly Council meetings).  
 
Note:  The members of EXCO also serve as the Portfolio Heads of the portfolio Committees of 
Council. 
 
Portfolio and Standing Committees of Council 
 
Portfolio / Standing Committees of Council have been established in order to facilitate 
opportunities for Councillors and officials to engage more directly regarding departmental 
issues of concern / interest.  These deliberations and discussions would be facilitated by the 
functioning of 5 portfolio committees (who meet every second month) and through discussions 
that take place within Standing Committee meetings (held bi - monthly). 
 
In this manner, the relevant Councillors develop a greater understanding of departmental 
issues.  When matters are referred for decision making (for policy and operational issues), these 
Councillors are better prepared to make an informed decision (having obtained greater insight 
and understanding of operational challenges and issues within departments). 
 
Apart from the Mayor and the Speaker, all Councillors are required to serve on a Portfolio 
Standing Committee. After issues are discussed at these Standing Committee meetings, 
recommendations are submitted to EXCO and are thereafter reported to a full Council. 
The existence of the Standing Committees is to provide opportunities for Councillors and 
officials to engage in greater discussion or to obtain additional insight/information so that the 
Councillors involved can provide insight and guidance at the level of the Executive Committee 
and ultimately to Council. 
 
Each Standing Committee and its responsibilities are reflected as follows: 
 

 Finance Standing Committee 

o Provides guidance and oversight in the management of the municipal financial resources 

in order to ensure efficient, effective and economic functioning; 

o As per the Municipal Finance Management Act, Act No 56 of 2003 and the National 

Treasury Regulations, the Finance Department is required to focus on effecting financial 

management and to provide implementation support to all departments ; and  



 

 328 

o This Committee will facilitate functioning through the provision of oversight and 

appropriate decision making regarding policy and operational issues. 

 Governance and Administration Standing Committees (Corporate Services and Strategic 

Services Departments) 

o Provides guidance and oversight regarding the Human Resource and Administrative 

issues of the Municipality and Council; 

o Provides administrative support to Council and political structures in the manner in 

which their positions and functions are exercised.  Structures included in this support 

function are:  Council, the Office of the Speaker; the Mayor and his/her Mayoral 

Committee; the Council Committees; the office the Municipal Manager; Ward 

Committees; Community Development Workers and the Strategic Management 

Department. 

o Ensures the provision of human resources management and development and 

administrative management of the organization;  

o Facilitates the development, monitoring and evaluation of the performance 

management structure; and  

o Legal and compliance issues are reported through this structure. 

 Infrastructure Standing Committee 

o Provides guidance and oversight to the Technical Services Department (dealing primarily 

with the facilitation of infrastructure development as both external and internal 

responsibilities); 

o Facilitates infrastructure development in terms of the maintenance and development of 

existing structures (administratively and technically); and 

o Facilitation of technical functions that include: water and sanitation, roads and 

stormwater, housing schemes; electricity reticulation and distribution and the 

processing of building plans and quality monitoring. 

 Community Services Standing Committee 

o Provides guidance and oversight regarding community based services that are the 

responsibility of the Community Services Department.  These services include: the 

reduction of HIV/Aids; the control of traffic; disaster management; environmental  

management; air and noise pollution; pauper burials; child care facilities; community 

halls; parks and recreational facilities and libraries; and 
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o Facilitates the development of by-laws and the availability and maintenance of disposal 

sites. 

 IPED Standing Committee 

o Provides guidance and oversight in the manner in which the IPED Department promotes 

social and economic development; 

o Facilitates the planned use of local government resources to create jobs and to reduce 

poverty (technical, environmental and financial). 
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Council Structure: 2006 – 2011                       Council Structure: 2011 – 2016  
 

 

Emalahleni Municipality Councillors and members of Standing 
Committees 

 
 

 
 

 
Executive Committee Structure 

2006 - 2011 

Executive Committee Structure 
2011-2016  

 
 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
S. Doni Portfolio Head 
P. Kwanini 
B.P. Twala 
L.P. Mapete 
L.M. Ngcongca 
 

Honourable Mayor:  N Nyukwana 
(Chairperson) 
Cllr B P Twala 
Cllr V Jordaan 
Cllr T Kulashe 
Cllr N Phendu 
Cllr S Lliwani 

 
  

N.C. Lali Mayor 

D.S. Kalolo Speaker 

S. Liwani Chief Whip 

N Nyukwana Mayor 

D.S. Kalolo Speaker 

S. Liwani Chief Whip 
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COMMUNITY SERVICES STANDING COMMITTEE 

L.P. Mapete: Portfolio Head 
K. Nkasela    
P. Nobaza 
K. Bontshi    
F. Mthandeki 
S. Liwani 
 

Cllr S Liwani: Portfolio Head 
Cllr K Nkasela 
Cllr P Greyling 
Cllr P Nobaza 
Cllr L Gwegwana 
Cllr B Komani 
 

IPED STANDING COMMITTEE 

L.M. Ngcongca:Portfolio Head 
N. Ndamane 
N. Moyo    
V. Jordaan    
M.P. Mbili  
C.H. Bobotyana 
 

B P Twala: Portfolio Head 
Cllr T R Dudumashe 
Cllr N Ziduli 
Cllr Z H Teka 
Cllr T Ndlela 
Cllr N Peter 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE STANDING COMMITTEE 

B. Twala:Portfolio Head 
N. Dlikilili 
B. Mntuyedwa   
N. Ziduli    
L. Mooi  
M. Limba 

Cllr V Jordaan: Portfolio Head 
Cllr N F Koni 
Cllr S Mnyuko 
Cllr N NMakeleni 
Cllr N Klikilili 
Cllr Mxathule 
Cllr N Holana 
 

FINANCE STANDING COMMITTEE 

S. Doni: Portfolio Head 
S.K. Fudumele 
S. Mnyuko 
 N. Nyukwana   
M. Godla 
A. Yawa 

 

Cllr N Phendu: Portfolio Head 
Cllr N C Lali 
Cllr L Mooi 
Cllr M Godla 
Cllr L N Qashani 
Cllr Z W Mketsu 
Cllr T W Kwatshana 

 
 

GOVERNANCE & ADMINISTRATION  STANDING COMMITTEE 

P. Kwanini:Portfolio Head 
Z. Dyonase 
P. Matakata 
L. Gatyeni 
N. Peter 

 

Cllr T Kulashe: Portfolio Head 
Cllr M Mani 
Cllr Z Dyonase 
Cllr H C Bobotyane 
Cllr N Kraqa 
Cllr K Mjezu 
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a. Organizational Functional Structure      

 
 
 

 

 
 

• Income  
• Expenditure 
• Accounting 
• Financial Control 
• Budget 
• AFS 
• Management 

Programmes 
• Supply Chain 

Management 
• Procurement & 

Supply 
• Chain 
• Information 

Technology 

• Water & 
Sanitation 
(Services 
Provider) 

• Roads 
• Electricity 
• Sanitation 
• Building Control 
• Spatial 

Development 
• PMU  
• Housing 
• Transport 

Management 

• Administration 
• Records & Archives 
• Human Resources 
• Skills Development  
• Council Support 
• Labour Relations 
• Organisational 

Development 
• Occupational Health 

& Safety 

• IDP 
• LED 
• Tourism  
• SMME 
• IDP 
• Town Planning 
• Agriculture 

Development 

• Social 
Development 

• Environment 
Management 
Programme 

• (Grass Cutting, 
street cleaning, 
maintenance of 
sportsfields, public 
opens spaces etc.) 

• Commonage & 
Pounds 

• Solid Waste/ 
Landfill sites & 
Refuse 

• Libraries and 
Amenities (Halls) 

• HIV & AIDS 
• Cemeteries 

 

 
  

Municipal 
Manager 

N J Kwepile 

Chief Financial 
Officer  (s57) 

M Ludick 

Technical  

Services Manager 
(s57) 

W. Mkuyana 

Corporate Services 
Manager (s57) 

N. Lungwengwe 

IPED Manager 

(s57) 

N. Mntuyedwa 

Community Services 
Manager (s57) 

N. Mnyengeza 

Strategic Manager 

(s57)  

A. Stemele  

Legal & Compliance 
Manager   

P J Cloete 

Internal Auditor  

N. Roboji  

• Strategic Management of 
Mayoral Office 

• Communications  
• Public Participation (Mayoral 

Outreach) 
• Special Programmes 
• Ward Committees 
• IGR 
• Performance Management   

• Audit Compliance and 
Reporting 

• Risk Management 
• Legal Advice 
• Overall of Compliance 

• Annual Report /PMS & SDBIP  
The Municipal Manager 

accountable but managed and 

co-ordinated with the 

assistance of the Legal and 

Compliance Manager  
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Note: This high level structure and the structure used within ELM represents the most 
recently approved structure that was in effect just prior to the proposed structure detailed 
within the IDP Review for 2011- 2012. The newly appointed Council will revisit the IDP and 
ensure that with input from the community, it will reflect the appropriate needs and will 
cater for the 2011/2016 term of office.  This IDP will in turn inform future changes to the 
organogram. 
 
The Integrated Development Plan is reviewed annually.  Alignment between the Budget and 
the IDP occurs in order to ensure that an appropriate Budget to meet those prioritized IDP 
needs is met. Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plans are then developed for 
each Department (aligned to both the IDP and the Budget).  In this manner the organization 
maintains clear strategic direction.  Each department contributes towards the meeting of 
the organizational strategic objectives by ensuring the alignment of the SDBIP to the IDP 
and Budget and by ensuring that every effort is made to achieve planned objectives.  

 
5.2 Public Participation and Consultation 
 

Council is highly committed to the promotion of local democracy through the extensive 
involvement of communities in its planning and decision-making processes. To this end 
the municipality organizes and arranges for opportunities for consultative engagement 
throughout the financial year.  These have included: Representative Forum meetings, 
Mayoral Imbizo’s, Exco outreaches, Ward Committee meetings, interaction with 
Traditional Leaders, Community Development Worker projects and the like. 
 
Communities are further encouraged to take part in project implementation via their 
locally based organizations.  These include co-operatives, trusts, NGO’s and various 
steering committees.   
 
It is noted that relations with our stakeholders and customers are monitored, evaluated 
and managed through a number of planned activities, which may include customer 
satisfaction surveys. 

 
Overall, the municipality is particularly proud of the success and impact of its public 
participation programme and related initiatives.  These projects are coordinated by the 
Office of the Strategic Manager in consultation with the Mayor, Speaker and Municipal 
Manager. 

 
Emalahleni Local Municipality has been recognized as being the only municipality in the 
Eastern Cape that has been selected to participate in the national benchmarking 
exercise (co-ordinated by SALGA and the centre for Municipal Research and Advice).   
 
In as far as public participation is concerned, this municipality has been invited by the 
participation unit of the DPLG&TA Eastern Cape, to participate and present on best 
practice principles and benchmarking.   
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Public hearings were held in partnership with NCOP in order to assess community needs 
and inputs.  These have continued in an effort to obtain feedback re – issues of concern 
and to report on progress.   

 
Customer Satisfaction Surveys 

  
While the survey is available as a questionnaire, little progress has been made by the 
Strategic Services – to disseminate, collect and finally to analyze the obtained data. 
 
In an effort to revitalize this concept and to ensure that customer care receives the 
attention and focus required, efforts are being made to utilize two dedicated staff 
members, CHDM staff from the Water Services Authority  and the Presidential/Fraud 
Hotline – to be utilized as vehicles within which  to lodge complaints regarding customer 
care and satisfaction.  Additionally, efforts will be made to distribute information via the 
Speakers office – for distribution to the various wards.  In this way, efforts to engage 
with the community will be more accurate and more effective.   

 
Special Programmes 

 
 Council remains committed to the promotion and protection of vulnerable and 

disadvantaged groups.  These include: women, youth, children, orphans and the 
disabled.  In an attempt to address the needs of these special groups and to facilitate 
their thorough involvement, mainstreaming and social integration within this economy, 
these special programmes have found place within the office of the Mayor. 

 
5.3 Ward Committees’ Establishment and Functionality 

 
 Ward Committees have been established and were functional in all 16 wards of the 

municipality.  It is recognized that effective operation of these committees is dependent 
on effective capacitation of all committee members.  In the case of both the outgoing 
and the new Council, efforts were and will be made to capacitate all committee 
members. 

 
 16 Ward Committees were established with 10 members per Ward.  The 160 members 

with their Ward Councillors were inducted and trained and it is noted that they have 
functioned effectively within these roles (facilitating information flow to Council) until 
May 2011, when they were disbanded on the date of the local government elections. 
 
Following the elections, 17 Ward Committees were elected and it is noted that 170 
elected members and their ward Councillors have been inducted.  Extensive training has 
been scheduled for the new financial year. 

 
 Training conduced for both the “outgoing” and new committee members focused on 

the following areas: 
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 How to convene meetings, meeting procedures and the importance of attendance.  

Monthly meetings are convened by the Ward Councillor as the Chairperson 

(supported by the relevant PR Councillor); 

 Minute-taking.  A secretary is elected and minutes are submitted to the Speakers 

Office and kept for record keeping/perusal as a public document; 

 Written reports on ward committee activities that are to be submitted regularly to 

Council; and  

 Required reporting conducted by Ward Councillors.  This would involve reporting to 

Ward Committees regarding items on Council’s agenda and Council resolutions. 

 

Note: The Speaker convened meetings with the Ward Committees quarterly to report on 
Council items and Agendas.  5 such meetings were convened during 2010/2011. 

 
5.4 Community Development Workers 

 
 Community Development Workers (CDW’s) are employed by the Department of Local 

Government and Traditional Affairs to assist communities and local government by 
becoming the liaison between the community, the municipality and the government 
departments. 

 
 The municipality experiences certain difficulties with these CDW’s as they report directly 

to the Department of Local Government and Traditional Affairs.  As a result, required 
activity reports are often not timeously received by the municipality (having been 
submitted first to the Department of Local Government and Traditional Affairs).  
Similarly, the issue of direct reporting (or the absence thereof) affects the entire issue of 
control.  Ultimately the current situation impedes the effective functioning of these 
CDW’s.  In an effort to remedy this a memorandum of understanding is currently being 
developed between local municipalities and the department in order to make CDW’s 
more accountable to municipalities. 

 
 It is noted that Auxiliary Workers have been appointed from the community by the 

municipality for a period of 12 months and are utilized to collect data from within their 
own communities as and when required.  Suitable training is conducted in order to 
ensure that they are suitably equipped with the skills necessary to extract required data 
and to explain required information.  In this way they become “Agents of Public 
Participation”. 
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5.5 Communication Strategy 

 
 Development of a Strategy 
 Emalahleni Local Municipality is currently in the infancy stage of developing a 

Communication Strategy.  A draft strategy is currently awaiting public comment. 
 
 

 Adoption of Strategy 
 This strategy will be adopted by Council after inputs are received and incorporated 

where required. 
 
 
 Human Resources available to lead the Communication Activities 
 It is noted that a Communications Officer has been appointed and is required to direct 

and facilitate all communication required activities (internal and external). 
 
 

 Infrastructure Resources available for Communication Activities 
 Infrastructure in terms of: human resources, administration, policy and procedures are in 

place, in order to ensure that appropriate communication strategies exist and are 
applied.   

 
Internally a newsletter is produced and circulated regularly and articles are submitted to 
“The Representative” (the local newspaper) regularly.   

 
The municipal Website is under construction and will be used to enhance communication 
further.  These communication activities are used to enhance public participation and 
awareness throughout and ongoing. 

 
5.6 Intergovernmental Relations (IGR) 
 
 The Constitution requires that a Municipality undertake developmentally oriented 

planning, so as to achieve the objectives for Local Government and give effect to its 
developmental duties as required in terms of s152 and s153 of The Constitution.  Chapter 
3 further requires the 3 spheres of government to provide structures to promote and 
facilitate Inter-Governmental Relations. 

 
 In accordance with this it is noted that: 

 
- The IDP schedule was developed to facilitate the process of adopting a single, 

inclusive and strategic Integrated Development Plan (as per s35 of the Municipal 

Systems Act); 
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- S35 of the Municipal Finance Management Act requires that National and Provincial 

Departments, and public entities provide timeous information and assistance to 

enable municipalities to properly plan the manner in which to develop their IDP; 

- S24 of the Municipal System Act requires that the planning undertaken by a 

municipality must be aligned with and complement the development plans and 

strategies of other organs of state so as to give effect to the principles of cooperative 

governance contained within the Constitution; 

- The municipality has convened an IGR Cluster in an effort to promote and to improve 

intergovernmental relations; 

- During early January, the meeting dates for the IGR meetings were circulated to all 

sector departments in an effort to facilitate and improve meeting attendance. 

 While meetings were held, the ongoing challenge remained the need to facilitate 
adequate attendance from all departments from within the IGR Forum.  Through the 
Office of the Premier efforts are underway to facilitate required commitments 
towards attending the IGR activities and forums. 

 
- A twinning arrangement between Emalahleni Local Municipality and Dordrecht 

Netherlands Municipality exists and has resulted in the signing of a memorandum of 

understanding between these municipalities (approved by the Department of Local 

Government and Traditional Affairs). Emphasis within this twinning agreement has 

centred around capacity building issues and in particular within the area of housing 

and Councillor training (particularly in view of the newly elected Council). 

 Project planning between these two municipalities takes place annually, in order to 
ensure that planned objectives are ultimately met and that scheduled visits occur as 
planned.  

 
 This agreement has been mutually beneficial and expertise and guidance between 

both parties has been shared (especially regarding housing and the access to 
benchmarking and information sharing). 

 
5.7 The Integrated Development Plan   

 
 S34 of the Municipal Systems Act (Act 32 of 2000) together with Chapter 2 of the 

Local Government Municipal Planning and Performance Regulations No. 706/2001, 
resulted in Emalahleni Local Municipality completing its first Integrated Development 
Plan (IDP) in 2002. This 5-year strategic plan was required to be reviewed and updated 
annually and this was completed accordingly.  Similarly the newly elected Council in 
2006 formulated its Integrated Development Plan, which informed all planning, 
budgeting, management and decision making processes that would lead to the 
fulfillment of the strategic objectives.  
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 Prior to the municipal elections of 2011, steps were taken to review the IDP and on 9 

May 2011 the 2011/2012 reviewed IDP was adopted by Council.  Following the election 
of the new Council (May 2011), a decision was made to revisit the IDP and to develop a 
5 year strategic plan that would determine the strategic direction of the new Council 
for their 5 year term of office. 

 
 IDP development and review requires a number of distinct phases and activities which 

will be detailed as follows:  
 

 The IDP represents the tool (strategic document) that will drive and shape the 

organization and ensure that its strategic objectives are met in the manner required.  

The IDP is developed after following the principles of “participative local 

government”.  After engaging in formal IDP hearings and outreach programmes, the 

needs of the community are ascertained and used to develop the IDP and its 

priorities.  In determining the IDP priorities annually, these needs are required to be 

aligned to the budget available and ultimately approved for the year in question. 

 

 From the list of approved IDP objectives (aligned to the budget), the organizational 

strategic scorecard is developed which details a set of targets and objectives for the 

current year.  This is translated into a Service Delivery Budget and Implementation 

Plan, which in turn is factored into departmental SDBIP’s.  This provides a “plan “of 

performance targets necessary to achieve the IDP objectives.  These targets are then 

translated into strategic objectives for each departmental manager and these are 

cascaded further into targets for all individual employees. All performance objectives 

are then ultimately aligned to the overall IDP objectives. This is process is depicted 

graphically in the diagram below:  
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 Note: Alignment between the IDP, Budget and SDBIP must be effected at all levels 

and this translates into the s57 managers’ performance scorecards and those of the 
staff reporting to them at all levels throughout the organization. Performance 
assessment at the individual level is currently only applicable to the level of the s57 
manager. 
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MECHANISMS AND PROCEDURES FOR COMMUNITY STAKEHOLDER PARTICIPATION 
Mechanisms and procedures have been developed through the outreach programme and Ward 
visits to optimise and encourage community participation in the review process to ensure the 
credibility of the process and end product. The following activities were conducted during 
2010/2011: 

ACTIVITY PLAN 
Activities and timeframes for different planning stages 

 

ACTIVITIES DATES RESPONSIBILITY 

PLANNING 01 August--30 
August 2010 

 

 Develop draft IDP review process plan and 
Budget plan       

 Present draft  process  plan to Exco 
 Adoption of the IDP process plan  by Council 

10  August 2010 
 
13 August 2010 
31 August 2010 
 

IDP manager 
 
IDP manager 
Municipal Manager 
 

ANALYSIS PHASE 01 Sept – 30 Oct  
2010 

 

 IGR Cluster to reflect and respond to comments 
on IDP by MEC of DPLGTA 

 IDP Steering committee (collect ward 
information). 

 Steering Committee meeting 
 IDP Rep Forum  
     - present status quo report  
     - priorities in order of importance as ranked by 

wards             

7TH September 2010 

21-29 September 
2010 
 
14th October 2010 

26th October 2010 

Municipal Manager 
 
IDP Manager 
Municipal Manager 
Mayor 

STRATEGIES 02 Nov – 17 Nov    
2010 

 

 IDP Steering committee: review existing 
strategies 

 Steering Committee meeting:  
      Present draft strategies  
      Present operational budget 
 IDP Steering Committee Workshop 

Final strategies for 2010/11 financial year 

09th -11th November 
2010 
 
11th November 2010 
 
17th November 2010 

IDP manager 
 
IDP manager / CFO 
 
IDP manager 
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PROJECTS 23 Nov 2010 -31 Jan 
2011 

 

 IDP Rep Forum :  

 - Identification of projects for 10/11 financial   year  

 - Prepare draft capital budget 10/11 

    IDP Steering Committee meeting : 

      - Present IDP projects & draft Capital & Operational  
budget 

23rd November 2010 
 
 
 
07th Dec 2010 

IDP Manager 
 
 
 
IDP manager & 
CFO 

ALIGNMENT& INTEGRATION PHASE                          01 Feb 2011-26 Feb 
2011 

 

 Cluster Meeting : Alignment with sector depts., 

& LM’s IDP’s and  CHDM 

 IDP Rep Forum 

     - Present draft IDP & Budget 

 IDP steering committee  
- IDP/ PMS & Budget  Alignment workshop 

01-18 February 2011 
 
 
15 February 2011 
 
 
24th February 2011 

IDP manager 
 
Mayor 
 
 
IDP manager 

ADOPTION PHASE                                                     01 March-14 April  
2011 

 

 Public Comment Period- (Advert & Road 

shows)  

 IDP & Budget document consolidation 

 Adoption of draft IDP & Budget by Council 

 Submission to office of MEC 

 Development of IDP & Budget Summaries 

18th March 2011 

 

22- 31 March 2011 

31st March 2011 

05 April 2011 

12-14 April 2011 

IDP Manager 
IDP Manager & 
CFO 
IDP Manager 
IDP Manager  
IDP Manager & 
CFO 

IDP & BUDGET IMPLEMENTATION PLAN   

 IDP Steering Committee 

   - Finalize Draft Budget 

 Adoption of Final IDP, Budget, PMS & SDBIP 

26 April2011 

 

9th May 2011 

 

Municipal 
Manager 
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The IDP Steering Committee was set up in order to drive this process and was comprised of 
middle and senior management as well as Portfolio Heads, as depicted below: 

 
 Integrated Planning and Economic Development (Mr. N Mntuyedwa) 
 Finance (Ms. M Ludick) 
 Technical Services (Mr. W Mkuyana) 
 Corporate Services (Ms N Lungwengwe) 
 Community Services (NP Mnyengeza) 
 Office of the Municipal Manager (Mr. N Kwepile) 
 Portfolio Heads (Councillors) 

 
Responsibilities of the IDP Steering Committee are inter alia, to assist with the following 
activities in the following manner: 
 
 Provision of technical support to the IDP 
 To conduct IDP planning to facilitate and manage implementation, under the approval of 

the manager. 
 To commission many and varied business plans and feasibility studies for projects; 
 To facilitate communication and comment of final and draft reports. 

 
The IDP Representative Forum 

 
The IDP Representative Forum was established in order to facilitate the participation of all 
municipal stakeholders in the process of municipal planning and decision-making. 
 
These stakeholders include inter alia; 
 Ward Councillors 
 Ward Committees 
 Traditional Leaders 
 Government Departments and parastatals 
 Community Development organizations 
 Non-governmental organizations 
 Youth Council 
 Community Policing Forums 
 Local Business Chambers 
 Unions 
 Municipal Speaker 
 The Mayor 
 Disabled Structures, and 
 Woman’s Forum 
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Technical Support Teams 

 
Technical support teams were created in-house to provide technical advice and guidance 
regarding the process of establishing a Performance Management System, formulating the IDP, 
its Budget, Financial Plan and the preparation of the Spatial Development Framework. 
 
Appointed service providers would be managed by the relevant municipal department and the 
service provider would report directly to the relevant cluster.  The cluster in turn, would draw 
up the terms of reference for the various sector plans that would be undertaken in their area. 
 
In this manner, every effort was made to ensure that the IDP was formulated with input from all 
sectors and ensuring “buy-in” and commitment towards achieving the IDP objectives (achieved 
through alignment of the SDBIP’s and scorecards). 
 
The Council, IDP Coordinator, Heads of Departments, Senior Management; IMSS/IDT; Sector 
Department; National and Provincial Government and sport providers all have their role to play 
and through this and a Community Participation Strategy every effort is made to ensure that 
the required milestones are reached.  These milestones may be depicted as: developing the 
budget and IDP Process Plan; Analysis of the Budget and Process Plan; the Strategies and 
Project and MFMA draft Budget Phase; and the Integration and the Multi-Year Budget Phase. 
 
In this manner, synergy has been created between the processes of strategic planning, setting 
of performance targets and performance plans and the process of monitoring, assessment and 
management of performance.   
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Institutionally, the following roles and responsibilities exist when developing/reviewing and implementing the IDP: 
 
INSTITUTIONAL ARRANGEMENTS, ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

ACTORS ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

Council  Consider and adopt reviewed IDP 
 Encourage public participation 
 Keep public informed about the contents of the IDP 
 Adopt the Integrated Development Plan, Budget and SDBIP 

IDP Manager 

(Municipal 
Manager or 
delegated 
other) 

 Ensure that the Process Plan and reviewed IDP are adopted by the Council 
 Manage the local municipal IDP by ensuring that all daily planning activities are performed within an efficient and effective 

consideration of available time, financial and human resources 
 Encourage an inclusive participatory planning process and compliance with action programmes 
 Facilitate the horizontal and vertical alignment of the district IDP 
 Ensure that the planning process outcomes are properly documented 
 Manage service providers to the district or local municipal IDP 
 Coordinate with various government departments and  to ensure that all the projects, strategies and objectives of the local 

municipality are shared and distributed amongst government departments so that they might incorporate them in their 
planning process and vice versa 

Heads of 
Departments 
& Senior 
Management 

 Provide technical and advisory support to the IDP Manager  
 Perform daily planning activities including the preparation and facilitation of events, documentation of outputs and making 

recommendation to the IDP Manager and the Municipal Council 
 Interact with the relevant cluster regarding the prioritization of their individual departments projects and programmes for 

the following years 
 Provide clear terms of reference to service providers 

/cont. 
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ACTORS ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

District 
Municipality 

 Provide support and guidance on IDP Review process 
 Assist municipalities to achieve the target dates 
 Interact with service providers to ensure that a quality product is provided 
 Assist with workshops 
 Project Management and Implementation Support Services 
 Ensure that clusters achieve integrated planning 
 Ensure that an uniform reporting mechanism is devised 

Sector 
Departments 

 Ensure the participation of Senior personnel in the IDP review process 
 Horizontal alignment of programmes and strategic plans within the clusters 
 Provide technical support and information to the planning process 
 Contribute relevant information to support the review process within the clusters 
 Incorporate district and local municipal projects into departments planning within the clusters 

National & 
provincial 
government 

 Monitor and evaluate the preparation and implementation process 
 Provide training and capacity building support to the local municipality – DPLG guide for credible IDPs 
 Coordinate support programmes so that overlapping does not occur 
 Provide technical guidance and monitor compliance with provincial policy and legal framework 
 Provide financial support to the IDP planning and implementation process 
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5.8 Legal Matters 
 
5.8.1 Setting up of a Legal and Compliance Unit 
 

 The Municipality has set up a Legal and Compliance Unit within the Office of the Municipal 
Manager.  This unit is primarily responsible for all legal and compliance related issues and 
this would include audit reporting on compliance, risk and performance management 
issues.  

 
 As per the currently applicable organizational structure (not the proposed structure within 

the IDP), it must be noted that the Internal Audit Unit exists as an independent unit 
reporting to the Municipal Manager.  Performance Management falls under the Municipal 
Manager.  A compliance component for both the internal audit and the performance 
management functions reside with the Legal and Compliance Unit.  

 
 It must be noted that This Unit works closely and collaboratively with the office of the 

Auditor General and this has impacted very positively on the organization. 
 
 As responsibilities of this unit increase and in an effort to focus overall on the achievement 

of all compliance issues, it is noted that additional administrative support may be required.  
This would in turn facilitate compliance support to extend formally throughout all municipal 
departments as well as to Council, Portfolio Committees and Standing Committees. 

 
 Compliance 
 
 The importance of understanding the onerous legislative compliance requirements and the 

implications for the Municipality are critical in all areas (relating to compliance). Greater 
effort is required to create awareness and commitment to compliance as a manner of 
improving service delivery throughout the organization.  To date great progress has been 
achieved in creating such awareness, but this remains an ongoing project. 

 
 This unit provides ongoing assistance and guidance to all affected parties throughout the 

organization.  A number of weaknesses regarding compliance have been identified and 
relate to the timelines and reporting procedures for the Budget and IDP as well as financial 
management.  These matters are being addressed and progress monitored. 

 
 Legal Providers 
 
 External and internal disciplinary cases are handled where possible by the Legal and 

Compliance Manager.  This Municipality does not have a specifically appointed Legal 
Services provider, but at times when the need arises the services of various firms of 
attorneys are utilized (on a needs basis, case by case).  These are reflected in the table 
below: 
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NAME OF FIRM LEGAL FIELD 

Kirchmann’s Labour Law 

Smith Tabata Inc. General Legal Matters 

Bowes McDougall Inc General Legal Matters 

Zepe and Associates General Legal Matters 

Van Niekerk Attorneys General Legal Matters 

Hutton & Cook Conveyancing 

 
5.8.2 Management of Litigation 

 
5.8.2.1 Case load management with specific reference to outcome 

 
A number of cases are currently in progress, so these are not able to be judged as being 
favorable or not.  This section will reflect only on the cases that have been resolved, that 
have been dropped, or those where there has been failure to pursue further.   
 
Those cases regarded as favorable are reflected in the table below: 

 
a. Favourable cases 

 

CASE NAME RECOVERY 
YES /NO 

REASONS FOR NON RECOVERY 

CCMA George 
 

No 
Labour Matter 

Hocco No Pending Taxation of Costs 

 
 

Those cases regarded as unfavorable are reflected in point b. 
 

b.  Unfavorable cases 
 
      There are no unfavourable cases at this time. 
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5.8.2.2 Case Age Analysis  

 

CASE NAME 
NATURE OF THE 

CASE 
COMMENCEMENT 

DATE 

CASES OF 2 
YEARS OR 

LESS 

CASES OLDER 
THAN 2 
YEARS 

REASONS FOR 
EXTENSIVE 
DURATION 

AWARD 

George and Others 

CCMA 
Challenge to 
s57 contract 
ending 

 

 Contract 
expired 2007 

Matter pending 
with CCMA for 
Arbitration. 
Labour court 
recently denied 
application to 
overturn 
condonation 
 

Arbitration 
ruling in favour 
of Council. 

Hoco- Fencing claim 
Summons – 
Civil Trial 

 

Matter went 
to trial and 
was 
postponed 

 Matter pending 
due to 
unavailability of 
witnesses and 
counsel.  Trial 
date set 10 
November 2011 

Plaintiff’s case 
against Council 
dismissed. 
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5.8.2.3 Judgment Defaults  

 

CASE NAME REASONS OR DEFAULT JUDGMENT 

DG Labour P391/2009       
Employment Equity         
Non Compliance 

This matter has been handed to Kirchmann’s for a rescission 
of the order incorrectly granted as the institution had 
complied and submitted the report.  Service was also not 
done on the institution.  Ongoing discussions occurred and 
are still pending with the Official of the Department for the 
consent recession to be granted.  

 
5.8.2.4 Prevention mechanisms of current litigations 

 
 The majority of cases that end in litigation arise from claims that are instituted against the 

Council, from contractual disputes and/or enforcement of contractual obligations due to 
non-performance. 

  
 The legal services department has implemented a proactive plan to address and minimize 

possible litigious matters, allowing for discussion and interaction with the other parties and 
their legal representatives. 

 
5.8.2.5 Criminal matters emanating from corruption and fraud 

 
 The Municipality has had to institute criminal matters in the Magistrate’s Court from time to 

time.  To this end close collaboration is maintained with the Office of the Public Prosecutor. 
 

5.8.3 Management of Legal Risks 
 
 The municipality has workshopped and reviewed the following policies during the year 

under review: 
 

- Emalahleni Municipality Risk Management Charter 

- Emalahleni Municipality Risk Management Strategy 

- Emalahleni Municipality Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy 

- Emalahleni Municipality Fraud Prevention Plan 
 
The challenge relating to implementation of these policies has been raised within the office 
of the Municipal Manager and with management.  This has resulted in the provision for 
employment of a dedicated employee to administer the implementation and roll-out of this 
critical area within the institution.    To date it is acknowledged that notwithstanding the 
progress made, risk is not managed effectively and this is an issue that needs to be formally 
prioritized moving forward.  Fraud prevention is addressed through the National Fraud 
Prevention Plan.  To this end regular meetings are held with stakeholders to discuss issues 
raised and to take appropriate action where required.   
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6.1 OFFICE OF THE MAYOR/MUNICIPAL MANAGER 

 
 

 
 

  Mayor:     NLali (2006-2011) and  
 Mayor:     N Nyukwana (2011-2016) 
 Municipal Manager:   N.J. Kwepile 
 Strategic Manager:   AM Stemela 
 Legal & Compliance Manager:  PJ Cloete 
 
 

           NOTE:  

- The responsibilities of the Strategic Manager are reflected within the Mayor’s Office 

and the Municipal Manager’s Office due to the strategic nature of this function and its 

integration within this office; 

- The organogram was reviewed and was tabled to Council 9 May 2011.  With the 

election of the new Council, it was decided that this structure would not be applied as 

the structure would need to accommodate the needs of the new 5-year Integrated 

Development Plan for 2011-2016 and this had yet to be developed.  For this reason the 

previously existing structure was utilized and represents the approved structure as 

depicted in the organogram above. 

 
 

NJ Kwepile 

Municipal Manager 

M Ludick 

Chief Financial 
Officer 

AM Stemela 

Strategic 
Manager 

NW Mkuyana 

Technical 
Services 
Manager 

NP Mnyengeza 
Community 

Services 
Manager 

N Lungwengwe 

Corporate 
Services 
Manager 

 

N Mntuyedwa 

IPED Manager 

N Roboji 

Risk Management & 
Internal Audit  

 

N Mrwebi 

Secretary 

 

N Qondela 

FBS Officer 

PJ Cloete 

Legal & 
Compliance 

Manager 
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This office is responsible for: 

 

 Enhancing public participation in order to ensure participative local government, by 

engaging in municipal outreach programmes, Council meetings and the like;  

 Maintaining effective contact and interaction will all spheres of government (sector 

departments, NGO’s, FBO’s, CBO’s as well as public private partnerships; 

 Ensuring Risk Management and internal Auditing; and 

 Ensuring that all aspects of compliance and legal responsibilities are attended to. 

 
Functional Responsibilities 
 

 Public Participation; 

 Ward Committee functioning; 

 Community Development Worker (through CDW functioning); 

 Twinning relations between Emalahleni Local Municipality and Dordrecht 

Municipality (Netherlands); 

 Communications (Internal and external); 

 Special Programmes; 

 Internal Audit; 

 Intergovernmental Relations; 

 Legal and compliance management; 

 Internal and External Service Delivery; and 

 IDP and Performance Management 

 
While discussions within this Chapter will merely focus on the functional responsibilities as 
indicated above, it is acknowledged that as the Municipal Manager, overall accountability 
exists for the work performed in all departments – which has been detailed in all 
departments separately in this report. 
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Focus Areas 2010/2011 
 

 Implementation of Special Projects; 

 Improved Public Participation initiatives; 

 Management of CDW’s; 

 Facilitation of Intergovernmental Relations; 

 Improved Communication (Internally and externally); 

 Applied Performance Management; 

 Compliance in respect of all legal and administrative commitments; and 

 Facilitation of the IDP. 

 
Performance Reporting and Challenges 
 
Public Participation 
 
Council is committed to the promotion of local democracy through the involvement of 
communities in its planning and decision-making processes.   Consultative forums such as:  
the Representatives Forum, Mayoral Imbizo’s, Exco Outreaches, Ward Committee 
meetings, Traditional Leaders, CDW operations and the like were held and took place.   

 
Communities were encouraged to take part in project implementation exercises via their 
locally based organizations, such as co-operatives, trusts, NGO’s and Steering Committee 
meetings. 
 
Every effort was made to develop and improve relations with stakeholders and 
customers. 
 
The Presidential Fraud Prevention Hotline was used to ascertain customer feedback and 
meetings are regularly held weekly, in order to address issues raised. 
 
During the 2010/2011 period a number of effective public participation interventions were 
held.  These include: 
 

 Mayoral Outreach/Imbizo’s 

As per the IDP Process Plan, IDP and Budget roadshows were held throughout the 

municipality and according to a scheduled programme. Each ward was visited by a 

team comprising politicians and management and led by an executive committee 
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member.  Wards 2,6,15 and 16 were targeted in order to assess and inspect the status 

of ongoing projects.  

 

 Public Hearings 

During the course of the year, public hearings were held in partnership with NCOP in 
an attempt to assess community needs and inputs.  These hearings continue with the 
appropriate action being taken as required. 
 
Public hearings on the IDP were also held successfully, by holding these through the 
IDP Forums already scheduled.  
 
 

 Ward Committees 

Ward Committees had been established in all 16 Wards (consisting of 10 members per 

Ward).  These committee members were duly inducted, trained and functioned 

effectively by ensuring information flow to and from the Council. 

In May 2011 as the new Council came into office, 17 Ward Committees were elected 

and the 170 elected members are to be suitably trained in order to ensure that they 

function effectively.  Training efforts will be focused on the areas of: meeting 

procedures and the importance of meeting attendance.  Minute taking remains an 

important area for training and a designated “secretary” is required to be trained to 

ensure that minutes are taken and made available timeously and in the manner 

prescribed. 

 Reports to Council  

These remain public documents and the Speaker reports on the activities of the 

Ward Committees to Council regularly. 

 

 Forum 

Within a forum, Ward Committee members met quarterly to report on Council items 

and Agendas. 5 meetings were convened for this purpose during 2010/2011.  

Reporting to the Ward Committees on items appearing on the Council agenda and 

resolutions taken occurs as is required. 

 Community Development Workers 

These CDW’s are deployed by the Department of Local Government and Traditional 
Affairs to assist communities to link with their municipalities and government 
departments.  The effectiveness of these CDW’s is compromised by the fact that 
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they report directly to the Department rather than to the municipality and this 
affects reporting and the provision of instruction.  Accountability to the communities 
is to be facilitated and improved. 
 
Auxiliary workers are appointed by the municipality for a period of 12 months and are 
used to collect required data from their communities, after receiving training on how 
to acquire reliable data.  In this manner they become agents of public participation. 
 
While great improvements have been experienced within the field of public 
participation ongoing focused efforts and the involvement of all stakeholders is 
required. 

 
Intergovernmental Relations (IGR) 
 
Intergovernmental Relations remains a District function in respect of co-ordination.   
Annually as required, the dates for the IGR Forum meetings were scheduled and 
circulated to all relevant parties/sector departments in order to facilitate meeting 
attendance.  Despite this, meetings were not always held as scheduled or well attended.  
Efforts from the Office of the Premier are encouraged to facilitate commitment to these 
IGR initiatives.  
 
Twinning arrangements have continued successfully between Emalahleni Local 
Municipality and Dordrecht Municipality (located in the Netherlands).  This interaction 
and commitment (which has developed from a signed Memorandum of Understanding), 
has resulted in cross visits between these two municipalities and the exchange of 
experience.  

 
Special Programmes 
 
Many successes have been achieved within the areas of special programmes – where 
Emalahleni Local Municipality remains committed and focused on facilitating 
development and creating opportunities for growth among the traditionally 
disadvantaged or handicapped. These are examined further as follows: 
 

 Youth programmes 

Emalahleni’s Youth Field Band (of more than 400 community members) took part in 

a National Band festival.  Following extensive training and preparation, they returned 

to the municipality after being awarded a  silver medal – thereby placing Emalahleni 

Municipality “on the map” in respect of cultural events. 

Many meetings are arranged and held in respect of Youth projects.  It is worth noting 

that within all of these (e.g. 16 Days of Activism and the Mayoral Cup) extensive  

planning and preparation occurs and concept plans for committees are created and 

approved, which in turn translate to project and implementation plans. 
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 Projects for the Elderly 

Over the past year a social development project was undertaken and elderly 

community members took part in a sports day arranged for the district.  Those who 

took part received sports kits.  An additional similar event is being held in Cradock. 

 Employee Wellness 

This remains an area that does not function at the correct capacity.  It is critically 

important to create a working environment where health is considered and managed 

holistically (i.e. from a mental and physical health perspective).  While an internal 

committee has been established in order to drive this process, Departmental 

commitment to this project does not appear to receive priority. 

This is an area that must be treated as a priority moving forward and the 

establishment of the internal committee will certainly set the tone for positive 

action. 

 Women’s Forum 

The Women’s Forum Symposium was postponed to August 2011 – just one month 

after the financial year end due to other commitments.  Notwithstanding, this 

process was well managed and a Chairperson was appointed and a concept plan 

approved. 

 Mainstreaming of HIV/Aids 

While this function is localized within the Community Services Department it links to 

special projects.  In an effort to mainstream HIV/Aids, interdepartmental forums 

(IDF’s) have been established and with strategic planning, workshopping and the 

development of plans to incorporate this mainstreaming into each and every 

department, progress has been made.  Unfortunately no formal budget exists for 

any mainstreaming activities and efforts are to be made to source funding from 

other and various sources. Notwithstanding the use of initiative by the CSSM has 

facilitated many of the achievements thus far. 

Generally it is noted that efforts to mainstream HIV/Aids are all directed in-house at the 

exclusion of the community.  A lack of budget and capacity impedes further progress. 

All HIV/Aids days have been well managed and Peer Education workshops have been 

undertaken as required. 
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Note: During the next financial year it is the intention to hold a “Male Indaba” in an 

effort to obtain required input into all SPU projects.  This is to be commended at a 

strategic level. 

IDP and Performance Management 
 
Through the IDP Process Plan that was developed at the start of the new financial year, 
a thorough and correct approach was followed to ensure that the IDP was able to be 
reviewed with appropriate public participation (involvement and input). 
 
The reviewed IDP was developed timeously and tabled 9 May 2011.  However, due to the 
municipal elections and the appointment of the new Council it was decided that the 
reviewed IDP would not be accepted as the 5-year IDP (required for the new Council).  
This is still to be established and is in keeping with expectations to develop a new IDP for 
2011-2016. 
 
Based on alignment between the IDP and Budget, Service Delivery and Budget 
Implementation Plans were created for the organization and for each department.  The 
issue of alignment was not well achieved as it is noted that the SDBIP targets were not 
well constructed.  This in turn has an impact on attempts to align the SDBIP, IDP and 
Budget. 
 
While it is noted that improvements have been made in some areas of the SDBIP, in 
many instances these targets could be better and more specifically phrased.  The lack of 
input from some managers has impeded progress within these areas. 
 
Based on the Performance Management Framework and the related Performance 
Management Policy, efforts were made to apply the principles of performance 
management for s57 managers.  Performance agreements were developed and signed 
for these managers and performance scorecards (detailing required targets) were 
developed for each manager. 
 
Quarterly performance reporting was conducted. It is recognized that improvement in 
the manner in which assessment is conducted is required in order to ensure that the 
coaching and review aspects are adhered to as specified within the PMS Framework. It is 
noted that the final review of the s57 managers will only occur (for the year 2010/2011) 
after the approval of the Annual Report as it is only at this time that the information has 
been audited and verified. 

 
 In respect of performance reporting at the institutional level, it is unfortunate that the 

S72 report was submitted two months after the required deadline.  While this was not 
ideal, it perhaps highlights the need for all managers to treat performance management 
as an area of priority and to recognize that the responsibility of reporting lies with each 
and every manager.  Timeous submission of reporting must be adhered to in order to 
facilitate accurate and timeous compilation. In other respects performance reporting 
(institutional level) is occurring in the manner required. 
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 Internal Audit 

 
Progress within this field has not been without challenge.  An Internal Auditor was 
approved and an Internal Audit Unit was established.  An Internal Audit Plan was 
developed and approved by the Audit Committee.  The role and function of this unit is to 
facilitate compliance in the manner in which reporting is conducted and the manner in 
which policies and procedures are conducted.  Efforts are made to evaluate 
performance and functioning within departments and to advise them of important dates 
and on the type of reporting / information required from departments.  This unit focuses 
on the facilitation of compliance issues. 
 
Notwithstanding this appointment it is acknowledged that improvement overall is 
required and this is to a large extent necessitated by the need for management to treat 
these issues as a priority at all times rather than merely an issue of compliance. This will 
ensure that greater success is achieved within this area. 
 
The Audit Committee is established with external members.  While this was functioning 
well at the beginning of the year, this did not continue well after the resignation of two 
out of three members.  The appointment to these vacant positions will resolve this issue 
and result in the effective functioning of this external audit function (with regular 
reporting to ensure that compliance issues are met).  
 
Legal and Compliance 
 
The full-time appointment of the Legal and Compliance Manager has been beneficial to 
the organization.   
 
Areas pertaining to legal issues (in-house or externally) are managed by the Legal and 
Compliance Manager and in this manner valuable advice and service is provided and 
received.  
 
From a compliance perspective, this manager ensures that areas of compliance are met 
throughout the organization and this has been facilitated by the development of a 
Compliance Calendar.  This manager works closely with the internal auditor and the 
Auditor General in order to facilitate the management and control of identified 
compliance issues which are critical for the organization.  On all levels and within all 
departments this manager is required to set up appropriate structures to ensure that 
compliance and reporting deadlines and compliance responsibilities are met. 

 

General issues of Corporate Governance and Compliance   
 
      The following issues are noted: 
 

 All prescriptions regarding Conditions of Service from SALGBC are applied to the 

letter; 
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 The appointment of the Legal and Compliance Manager has ensured that  

compliance and legal issues are generally being managed more effectively; 

 Legal cases involving labour have been successfully resolved to date; 

 No success was achieved regarding the Customer Satisfaction Survey.  These 

questionnaires were required to be distributed and although the Ward Councilors’ 

did engage in the distribution of these questionnaires, this was not done effectively.  

This prevented the appropriate study and analysis from being done; 

 All by-laws (existing) were reviewed as planned and approved by Council (therefore 

being gazette by Council).  No new bylaws were reviewed; 

 Training in respect of all new guidelines, policies and by-laws was scheduled and has 

occurred as required; and 

 All contracts of employment have been reviewed, updated and re-signed as and 

when appropriate.  
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6.2 Community Services Department 
 
 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT STRUCTURE 
 

 

Community Services Manager S57 Manager: N.P. Mnyengeza 

 
“To provide services to the communities in a sustainable manner and to promote a safer and 

healthy environment” 
 

 
Functional Responsibilities 
 

 Health Services 

 Mainstreaming HIV/AIDS 

 Disaster and Environmental Health 

 Library Management Services 

 Community Halls 

 Sportsfields 

 Cemeteries 

 Parks and Public Open Spaces 

 Street Cleaning and Refuse Removal 

 Refuse/Landfill Sites 
  

Community 
Services  

Manager 

NP Mnyengeza 

 

Unit Supervisors 

x3 

NM Magongoma 

A Gouws / FD Saleni 

Disaster & Environmental 

 Health Officer 

Vacant 

 

Public Amenities 
Officer 

Vacant 

HIV/AIDS Co-
ordinator 

Vacant 

Administration 
Officer 

Y Nkwentsha 
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Focus Areas 2010/2011 
 

 Mainstreaming HIV/Aids 

 Effective management of all matters pertaining to offensive trades 

 Management of all cleansing functions 

 Implementation of Acts and Ordinances relating to cemetery operation 

 Fire Fighting Services 

 Pounds 

 Burial of animals 

 Development of a firefighting centre in Lady Frere 

 Maintenance of Halls 

 Management of Libraries 

 Fencing, record provision and maintenance of caravan parks, public open spaces, and 
sportsfields 

 Fencing and maintenance of cemeteries 

 Pound management and  

 Waste Management implementation 
 

Performance Reporting and Challenges 
 

Waste Management 

 Emalahleni Municipality operates according to the District Municipality’s Integrated 
Waste Management Plan. The District Municipal Plan was under review and was 
provided to the Emalahleni Municipality during February 2011; 
 

 It is noted that the Waste Management: Solid Waste Section is functioning effectively.   
The Refuse Removal Programme has been well applied and refuse has been regularly 
(weekly) removed from residential areas, while it is removed within the CBD area twice 
per week (as per schedule).  These statistics were reflected in the quarterly performance 
reports; 

 Clearing of illegal dumping sites in open spaces was conducted.  An environmental 
impact assessment study was conducted by the Department of Environmental Affairs to 
establish the status and location of the current sites within the municipal area.  This 
study illustrated that none of the 3 landfill had licenses and efforts are underway to 
attempt to legalize these; 

 Provision has been made for the development of a licensed Regional Landfill Site in Lady 
Frere and Dordrecht and in Indwe dumping sites are being converted into transfer 
stations/collection sites.  To this end feasibility and other studies have been conducted 
and licensing is awaiting approval by the Department of Environmental Affairs, pending 
submission of the design; 

 Challenges exist in respect of human and capital resources.  In particular, waste removal 
in rural areas is a particular challenge as these areas are not metered and “residents” are 
therefore not billed for these services; and 
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 Recycling activities by community members in Dordrecht, Lady Frere and Indwe are well 
supported and have become a part of the municipalities waste management initiatives. 

 
Waste Management: Solid Waste Section 
 
Within this section, great success has been achieved within the following areas: 
 
 Refuse was regularly removed from commercial business (twice a week); 
 Household refuse was removed by the Municipality everyday as per target and 

success was achieved; and 
 Clearing of illegal dumping in open spaces was conducted. 
 The dumping site in Lady Frere and Indwe were fenced and the one Dordrecht still 

needs fencing. 
 The site for the landfill site in Lady Frere has been identified. 
 The collection of Waste has been a success also due to assistance by Chris Hani 

District Municipality (Environmental Section), which has funded the department for 
waste management. 

 
An environmental impact assessment study was conducted by the Department of 
Environmental Affairs to establish the status and location of the current dumping sites 
within the municipal area.  The outcome showed that none of the 3 sites were licensed.  
Provision in the Annual Financial Statements now exists to rehabilitate 3 dumping sites 
and funding from the District Municipality is available to compile business plans for 
waste management in the municipal area.  The 3-landfill sites in the Municipality are all 
not licensed. The municipality has now taken a route of converting the two sites, in 
Dordrecht and Indwe into collection points, and has established a legal landfill site in 
Lady Frere. This process has already begun. A service provider has been appointed for 
the identification of the site and the feasibility study.   The feasibility study is in process. 
 

Pound Management 
 
As per the current year’s target, efforts were required to identify land for the construction 
of pounds – to provide for the management of stray animals.   
 
The municipality is currently in the process of constructing a pound in Dordrecht.  
 
Up until this point rangers were deployed by the Department of Transport to assist in the 
removal of animals along the main roads leading to and from Lady Frere and Dordrecht.  
Stray vehicles are transported to the Lukhanji pound in vehicles that are owned by the 
Department of Transport.  Income received in this manner is provided to the Lukhanji 
Municipality.  Additionally the municipality has its own rangers who are responsible for 
ensuring that there are no threats to anyone’s property and stray dogs are removed 
accordingly.  
 
Cemeteries 
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The overall objectives of this section are to provide for and to control burials within the 
prescriptions of the Health Act.  Within Lady Frere and Dordrecht land has been provided 
and is utilized to provide functioning cemeteries on a sustainable basis.  
 
Emalahleni Municipality graves are numbered and registered to the community as needed.  
New sites have been identified and an Environmental Impact Study was completed for 
Dordrecht in order to ascertain existing sites and where possible to procure additional sites 
and land.  Notwithstanding it must be noted that these processes are to a large extent out 
of the control of Emalahleni, who rely on the Department of Land Affairs.  Land was not 
acquired for Indwe due to a dispute over the land offer (handled by the Department of 
Land Affairs). 
 

During 2010/2011 a Land Survey was conducted and land was identified and pegged in Lady 
Frere and Indwe.  While this represented an aspect of progress, further progress in respect 
of the fencing of identified land/wards could not be completed as required.  This was to a 
large extent beyond the control of the Community Services manager and could in fact only 
be completed after the pegging of the land (land survey).  Additionally challenges were 
experienced with the required funding for these projects.  This matter is still being pursued 
by Emalahleni Municipality through Land Affairs. 
 
Efforts were improved in the attempts to implement a cemetery maintenance programme 
and in this regard general maintenance was achieved (including grass cutting and cleaning 
of cemeteries).  Despite these improvements it must be noted that funding constraints 
remain a challenge. 
 
The greatest challenge currently experienced relates to the correct management of 
cemeteries (information keeping and management).  A software management programme 
to enhance these functions is currently being considered.  Funding remains one of our 
largest limitations. 
 
General Objectives: 

 
 Development of Pauper Burial Policy; 
 Adoption by Council of additional sites for cemeteries in all towns; 
 Acquisition of land from the Department of Land Affairs; 
 Development of by-laws for Council resolutions; 
 Promulgation of by-laws in the local papers and local radio stations; and 
 Ensuring adequate infrastructure provision. 

 
The greatest challenge remains funding, and obtaining and developing appropriate sites 
while ensuring staff capacitation at all levels and within all areas to ensure that staff 
function optimally. 

 
Sportsfields, Parks and Public Open Spaces 
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The overall objectives of this function are to provide and maintain parks and open spaces 
thereby creating a pleasant environment for the communities, contributing towards global 
“greening” and to maintain sidewalks and pavements.  Due to budget constraints, two 
parks were not fully functional by June 2010 as planned. 

 
 
 

General objectives were achieved and are reflected on as follows: 
 

 The pruning of the trees along municipal streets within Emalahleni Municipality; 
 Regular cutting of grass on sidewalks and open spaces as per maintenance and cutting 

schedules;  
 Tree cutting as per schedules; 
 3 Sporting facilities exist which provide a service to 102 000 users; and 
 Netball and football poles were erected. 

 
Funding was made available within the 2009/2010 budget for the development of 10 new 
sportsfields in within the rural areas and this was achieved. 

 
In respect of sportsfields and parks and open spaces it is noted that maintenance is 
conducted as per schedule and in terms of the available budget.  In this regard the target is 
well achieved and grass-cutting occurs monthly. 

 
It is noted that not all public open spaces are fenced or effectively maintained.  Although 
these areas have been identified and reported on the absence of funding has prevented 
this project from taking place.  As an illustration, it must be noted that the lowest quotation 
to complete this project was in the region of R200 000.  In reality the municipality had 
budgeted R20 000 and this shortfall was clearly not within the control of the Community 
Services Manager.  Efforts to increase this funding in the new financial year will be 
undertaken.  

 
Libraries (managed on an agency basis) 
 
Libraries were established in order to provide reading and study material to the youth and 
the community.  Currently 3 libraries are operational and required to be managed 
effectively.  These are to be found in Dordrecht, Indwe and Rietspruit.  Management of 
these facilities occurs on behalf of the Department of Sport, Arts and Culture.  
 
Libraries require librarians to conduct the following activities: 
 

 Purchasing of library materials 

 Sourcing of books from the book fare; 

 Promoting libraries within rural areas; 

 Library infrastructure provision; and 

 Promotion and participation in the library works activities. 
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Currently 2 qualified librarians and 2 library assistants are running these libraries.  A new 
library has also been established in Rietspruit. In an effort to reach the community in more 
rural areas a mobile library has been installed in Ward 2 (Bengu).  DSRAC has been 
approached and has approved the establishment of a library in Lady Frere.  
 
Improvements in functioning are required and as a first port of call efforts are to be made to 
facilitate the effective functioning of the Library Committee and encouraging Committee 
members to meet quarterly as scheduled. 
 
Halls are being maintained as required and as per schedule.  It is noted that Ward 9 has had 
a hall constructed by Technical Services Department and requires the final 
halls/maintenance schedule.  Additional funding is always required.  
 
Fire Fighting 
 
This has been exceptionally well achieved and efforts have been made to lobby for funding 
from Chris Hani District Municipality in order to establish a firefighting centre in Lady Frere 
and for the related equipment.  This has to a large extent been achieved, although progress 
will continue to be required to be achieved within this area moving forward.  As a district 
municipal function Chris Hani District Municipality has appointed a task team to assist with 
the process of establishing and equipping this Centre. 
 
Health 
 
While this not a local municipality function, the provision of community health clinics within 
the municipality resides with the Eastern Cape Department of Health.  Two (2) of our three 
(3) hospitals are managed administratively by the Department of Health and Indwe’s 
hospital is currently experiencing provincialisation and takeover.   Efforts were intended to 
be made to lobby to the Department of Health in order to upgrade and to maintain existing 
primary health care facilities.  Although this concept and objective is to be commended, no 
progress has been made and every effort must be made to engage in pro-active lobbying 
moving forward. 
 
Environmental Management 
 

 Environmental management is critical in attempting to remove and reduce the threat of 
alien species.  The project to remove alien species has begun and the required progress 
reporting has occurred – showing great improvement overall.  This project has created 
220 jobs and is regarded as a successful project all around. 
 

 As detailed backlogs are being experienced in the areas of refuse removal and with the 
landfill sites.  While these are due to limited financial resources and human capacity it is 
also required that these are reported on and analyzed in terms of baseline data (in order 
to determine backlogs and infrastructure costs).  This exercise is progressing well, 
although its status is considered to be “in progress”. 
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Traffic Safety and Security 
 

 Efforts to establish a policing forum have not yet been achieved and the project has not 
progressed well.  This is to a large extent beyond the control of the Community Services 
Manager and appropriate correspondence has been entered into which details the 
progress. 
 

 Efforts to lobby the SAPS to introduce mobile police stations in priority crime spots are 
underway.  While this is formally in progress, it is noted that additional action will be 
required to facilitate the provision of mobile sites.  
 
 

Community Halls and Recreational Facilities 
 
During this financial year our area of priority was the establishment of recreational facilities 
that generally included public halls, parks and sports facilities. 
 
In an effort to move beyond the obvious financial constraints, all wards were requested to 
choose one central playing field on which to pay sports and the like.  At least 10 fields were 
chosen and were then leveled and graded.  These playing fields were provided with football 
and netball poles, nets, balls and other related material. 
 
It is the intention that the remaining seven playing fields would be completed within this 
financial year. 
 
It was also established that: 
 
 Sports codes be determined based on communities needs within various Wards; 
 Appropriate land be developed and acquired; 
 Funding be negotiated for the development from National, Provincial and CHDM 

structures; 
 Business plans be developed for appropriate development; and 
 Sustainability plans be developed with community involvement. 
 
Currently the Community Services Officer (Public Amenities) has been appointed and the  
Youth Centre in Dordrecht has been renovated.   
 
Parks and Recreation 
 
The overall objective of this function is to provide parks and open spaces thereby creating a 
pleasant environment for the communities, contributing towards global greening and to 
maintain sidewalks and pavements.  Due to budget constraints, two parks were not fully 
functional as planned.   
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Notwithstanding, a schedule and programme for maintenance has been well achieved and 
reporting on progress and expenditure has occurred in the manner required.  Grass cutting 
does occur monthly. 
 
The greatest challenge relates to the need to fence and maintain parks and open spaces.  A 
project on fencing could not occur and was beyond the control of the Community Services 
Manager who was unable to make progress due to the lack of financial resources and a 
budget.  Attempts to source additional funding remain an ongoing challenge. 
 
Three sporting facilities exist which provide a service for 102 000 users. 

 

Notwithstanding, a schedule and programme for maintenance has been well achieved and 
reporting on progress and expenditure has occurred in the manner required.  Grass cutting 
does occur monthly. 
 
The greatest challenge relates to the need to fence and maintain parks and open spaces.  A 
project on fencing could not occur and was beyond the control of the Community Services 
Manager who was unable to make progress due to the lack of financial resources and a 
budget.  Attempts to source additional funding remain an ongoing challenge. 

 

Commonages 
 
Commonages and Pounds are required to be managed. 
 
Currently, the Municipality is in the process of establishing a stock pound in Dordrecht and 
it is hoped that this will enhance Municipal revenue. Rangers have been appointed to 
ensure that stray animals are removed from our towns.  Emalahleni Municipality is in the 
processes of establishing a commonage register that will ensure effective management of 
the municipal commonages. 
 
It is noted that:  
 
 Commonages were fenced as per maintenance plans and it was required that farms 

and  suitable lands be procured for commonage users as these commonages are over 
grazed. 

 Pound masters and rangers were appointed to facilitate the commonage maintenance 
process. 

 
Community Services: Statistics on Facilities 

 

Facility 
No of 

Facilities 
No. of 
Users 

No. of 
Employees 

Cost 
R(000) 

Library Services 2 530 2 330 

Museums and Art Galleries 0 0 0 0 

Other Community Halls /facilities 10 3000 10 803 
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Cemeteries and Crematoriums 6 102 000 4 280 

Child-Care (including crèches) 178 5 000 0 0 

Schools 119 17 850  0 0 

Sporting Facilities 13 102 000 3 197 

Parks 2 60 000 2 - 

 
 HIV/Aids Mainstreaming 
 
 The HIV/Aids Strategy has been approved by Council. 

 

Interdepartmental forums (IDF’s) have been established and with strategic planning, 

workshopping and the development of plans to incorporate the mainstreaming into 

each and every department, progress has been made.  Unfortunately no formal budget 

exists for any mainstreaming activities and efforts are to be made to source funding 

from various sources. 

The Community Services Manager is to be commended for the manner in which she has 

proactively implemented the HIV/AIDS programmes implemented (without required 

financial resources).  - peer educators trained and awareness campaigns undertaken in 

schools during August 2011 and the voluntary testing /counselling which also took place 

at this time. 

Additionally, it must be noted that efforts to mainstream HIV/Aids are all directed in-

house at the exclusion of the community.  A lack of budget and capacity impedes further 

progress. 
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6.3 CORPORATE SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 

CORPORATE SERVICES STRUCTURE 

 

 

Corporate Services Manager: Ms N. Lungwengwe 

 
 

“To provide the highest quality of human resources support for all departments within 
Emalahleni Municipality.  We undertake to capacitate Councillors and Administrative 

staff in order to deliver improved and sustainable services so that the Municipal 
Mandate is fulfilled and to promote public participation through two-way 

communication.” 
 

 Functional Responsibilities 
 

 Human Resources 
Benefit Administration; Recruitment & Selection; Staff Provisioning; Organizational 
Development; Employee Assistance; Policy and Procedure Development; HR 
Compliance; Fleet Management and Performance Management facilitation. 

 Labour / Employee Relations  
Effective application of LR Policy and the Labour Relations Act; 

 Occupational Health and Safety  
Compliance aspects of the Occupational Health and Safety Act, Act No. 85 of 1993; 

  

 

N Lungwengwe 

Corporate Services Manager 

 

M Ntshingana 

HR Officer 

 

E Xozumthi 

Fleet Management Officer 

 

NA Bushula 

Snr Administration Officer 

 

SL Nkosiyaphantsi 

Skills Development 
Facilitator 

 

LO Ndyumbu 

Unit Manager 

Dordrecht  

 

MA Nziweni 

Unit Manager 

Indwe 
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 Skills Development 
Capacitation initiatives; 

 Employment Equity 
Compliance with the Employment Equity Act; 

 Council Support 
Fleet Management; Committee Administration; Archives and Records  

 
Focus Areas 2010/2011 
 

 Council Administrative Support 

 Human Resources Development and Management 

 Employment Equity 

 Knowledge Management 

 Labour Relations 

 Occupational Health and Safety 
 
Performance Reporting and Challenges 
 
Achievement within each area of focus will be detailed, together with areas of significant 
focus and challenge. 
 
Human Resources 

 

 It is noted that the Provisioning Policy continues to be well applied and recruitment and 
selection occurs with strict adherence to this policy.  Filling of vacant positions was over-
achieved in terms of target and one disabled person was appointed in a senior 
management position as required.  
 

 Staff and Councillor training needs were well catered for in terms of the timeous 
development of the Workplace Skills Plan (developed from input from all departments).  
This was compiled and submitted timeously to the LGWSETA and thereafter 
Implementation Reports were compiled and submitted as required/legislated.  Training 
for Councillors and staff was well planned and executed.  
 

 The target of appointing 8 interns was achieved although two resigned and one was 
dismissed due to the fact that his qualifications were found to be misrepresented and 
thus fraudulent.  
 

 The organogram was reviewed and a proposed organogram incorporated into the 
2011/2012 IDP (adopted by Council 9 May 2011).  Notwithstanding this new structure has 
not been approved and the newly appointed Council are awaiting the 5 Year IDP with its 
related structure, policies and procedures.   
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 As per the requirement that all Job Descriptions be reviewed and updated in terms of 
the TASK Job Evaluation System great strides have been made.  A report analyzing all 
current Job Descriptions and their level of accuracy and compliance to the TASK Job 
Evaluation System has enabled the identification of all areas requiring attention and 
where new Job Descriptions are required.  This will be handled as a project within the 
new financial year.  
 

 In term of HR policies and procedures it is noted that:  

o The existing leave policy and procedure was required to be customized in order to be 
aligned to the SALGBC collective agreement;  

 
o The draft leave policy was tabled to the Governance and Administration Standing 

Committed and EXCO by 30 June 2011 and leave monitoring is now taking place 

monthly in a more effective manner; 

o The Draft Leave policy and procedure and the Suspension Policy and the draft 
Disciplinary Policy and Procedure have been developed but not yet submitted to the 
Local Labour Forum, Governance and Administration Standing Committee, Exco and 
Council. Notwithstanding these achievements, timeous progress has been impeded 
by delays caused by the LLF when required to consult on certain issues.  
Unnecessary delays are experienced and therefore the target related to this was 
revised and incorporated into the 201/2011 financial year. 

 While certain aspects of the implementation of the Performance Management System 
have been applied, it is noted that others have not.  These have been largely beyond the 
control of the Corporate Services Manager.  While there are signed Performance 
Agreements in place for the s57 managers and scorecards have been populated for all 
these managers, the final assessments of performance have not yet taken place for 
2009/2010 and for 2010/2011.  Assessments for 2009/2010 have been scheduled and 
postponed on numerous occasions. Most recently it was suggested that these be 
cancelled altogether but this would be cause for concern as it would be in breach of the 
s57 performance contracts.  At one point it was implied that the municipality was 2 years 
behind in these assessment reports.  This is not the case and it is hoped that the issues 
raised can be dealt with and that these assessments can still be concluded ---as per the 
performance agreement (for s57 managers).  Due to the fact that the final assessment 
could only take place following the approval of this document by the Council, scheduling 
for both assessments must again take place after this approval is received from the 
Auditor General. This may only take place following the approval of the Annual Report 
for 2009/2010 (i.e. after 31 March 2011) and similarly for 2010/2011.   

 The Organizational Rights Agreement has been concluded and implemented, having 
been signed and accepted by SALGA, SAMWU and IMATU and the monitoring of its 
implementation is being conducted as required.  
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Labour / Employee Relations 
 

 It is noted that the Local Labour Forum is meeting and has met additionally to the 
planned quarterly meetings.  Notwithstanding, it is noted that this forum is not fully 
functional.  At times progress is impeded by the LLF refusing to move forward on an 
item (that may be only for consultation). It is worth highlighting that there is a 
difference between issues requiring consultation and those requiring negotiation.  While 
negotiation can take extended periods of time – issues requiring consultation are in the 
truest form those provided for information and possible comment/input. 

 
Occupational Health and Safety 
 

 In this area, positive strides have been made and Risk Assessments have been 
conducted within all departments; First Aiders have been trained and Safety Committees 
have been set up in Dordrecht and Indwe.  Notwithstanding, the challenge of meeting 
attendance and conducting safety inspections throughout the organization remains a 
challenge.  This is due in part to the geographical nature of the terrain and the lack of 
transportation for the investigators. 
 
In an effort to provide assistance, Chris Hani District Municipality has provided 
transportation in the short-term by way of a bus. 

 
Administration 
 

 Progress within the management of Audit Queries is occurring, notwithstanding a 
history of audit queries not being addressed, timelines not being adhered to and no 
formal reporting through an Audit Action Plan occurring.  Accordingly it is noted that: 
o An Audit Action Plan for 2009/2010 has been developed and reporting on the audit 

related issues is addressed through a standing item on the weekly management 
meeting.  More formal reporting is to occur and to be documented.  

o At the supply chain management level it is noted that the SCM policy is being 
adhered to and all purchases, awards and expenditure occur within the SCM policy 
prescriptions.  While a service provider report is available, greater emphasis needs to 
be placed on reporting and on documenting actual services providers performance.  

o While progress has been made within the area of maintaining an assets register there 
are deficiencies remaining.  It is noted that an audit qualification on assets was 
awarded 2009/2010 due to the assets register not being maintained as required.  
Improvements have occurred in 2010 / 2011 and it is noted that the assets inventory 
list for immovable assets is maintained.  Issues with disposal of assets are very 
prevalent.  This needs to be managed more effectively.  Movable assets are bar-
coded as required. 

o While the electronic records management system was in place, IT problems 
prevented this from being fully functional and as a result not all Emalahleni Local 
Municipality records were captured.  Issues with the server have been identified and 
these are required to be addressed moving forward.  
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o In an effort to obtain and implement an HR clocking system it is noted that this 
system is still not in place and progress has been impeded ongoing by the lack of 
practical experience on the clocking system by the bidders. At this point and within 
the fourth quarter, a quotation from a service provider was accepted, and they are to 
be appointed from the beginning of the new financial year to complete this project.  

 
Employment Equity 
 

 Efforts to implement the Employment Equity Plan are not always possible due to the 
fact that targeted groups are in many instances not always available to the market (in so 
far as they meet the requirements of the post).  Notwithstanding, in this case the target 
of 90% achievement of the EE Plan has been achieved.  

 The EE Plan was reviewed, consulted with the LLF, submitted to Council and submitted 
to the Employment Equity Registry (Department of Labour) by 1 October.  Employment 
equity reporting on implementation has been reported regularly as prescribed and in the 
correct format. 
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6.4 Integrated Planning & Economic Development (IPED) Department 
 
 

 

 

“To ensure that resources (Human, Technical, Environmental and Financial) are organized in such a 
way as to ensure that jobs are created and poverty is reduced” 

 

IPED Manager: N Mntyedwana 

 
Functional Responsibilities 
 
 IDP Coordination  

 Town and Regional Planning 

 Agriculture Development 
 Local Economic Development 
 SMME Development 
 Tourism Development and Promotion 

 
Focus Objectives 2010/2011 
 
 Development and Implementation of the LED Strategy 

 LED Stakeholder Forum functionality 

 Tourism development and promotion of planned projects 

 Agriculture development (in terms of planned projects) 

 Improved market confidence as per the development of the Spatial Development 

Framework 

 IDP facilitation and coordination 

  

N Mntuyedwa 

IPED  

Manager 

L Dziba 

LED Officer  

SMME & Tourism 

RS Saule 

LED Officer 

Agriculture 

 

M Mazibuko 

Town Planner 

 

N Mqolombeni 

IDP Officer 

 

Vacant 

Departmental Admin 
Officer 
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Performance Reporting and Challenges 
 
Achievement within each area of focus will be detailed, together with areas of significant 
focus and challenge. 
 
Integrated Development Plan (IDP) 

 
The IPED Manager plays a facilitative role in respect of IDP projects.  The overall function of 
this Department is to ensure that IDP projects occur in the manner required i.e. that they 
are appropriately managed and reported on.  While the Strategic Manager is responsible 
for ensuring that Performance Management occurs institutionally, the IPED Manager is 
responsible to ensure that all IDP performance related information is collated for the IPED 
Department and submitted to the Strategic Manager (for example: SDBIP’s, monthly 
performance reports and the like). 
 
Local Economic Development (LED) 

 
Notwithstanding the development of the Local Economic Development unit, LED continues 
to be a challenge for Emalahleni Municipality – both from a capacity and from a resource 
point of view.  To this end it is noted that a number of targets (in the IPED Manager’s 
performance scorecard were required to be changed/moved, or cancelled due to a lack of 
funding. 

 
It is acknowledged that every effort and all resources should become focused on 
capacitating staff within the area of LED.   

 
During 2010/2011 the LED Strategy for Emalahleni Municipality was adopted 15 December 
2010.  With the strategy in place and the recognition that gaps are required to be closed a 
final LED Strategy has not been sent to Council together with the Implementation Plan.  

 
During 2009/2010 an LED Officer and a Town Planner were appointed to function within the 
LED section. They have improved greatly in their manner of functioning and reporting 
reflects this.  

 
The following LED Projects were identified and monitored and the following results were 
achieved:  

 
 Bathembu Cultural Calabash Project (after 2 years this has been exceptionally well-

achieved) 

 The Western Thembuland Cultural Village project was not started due to funding 

constraints, which were beyond the control of the IPED Manager.  While the 

Department of Agriculture remains the Project Manager, the intention was for 

Emalahleni to play a facilitation role.  This was a situation clearly beyond the control 
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of the IPED Manager. This project is set to be implemented in the following financial 

year. 

 Handover of the Xonxa Dam Development has been exceptionally well achieved and 

security personnel have been appointed in order to provide a presence and to take 

care of the infrastructure.  

 
Agriculture and Rural Development 
 
Within the agricultural and rural development area progress within the following 
projects is noted:  
 
 The target milestones for the mushroom project were required to be amended and 

agreed to by the Department of Agriculture.  This project was by no means a success 

and it was established through a feasibility study that the climate was not conducive 

to grow mushrooms.  

 The target for the Dairy Project required carefully consideration and was required to 

be amended as the same co-ordinator was attempting to run both the first and this 

project.  

 This target was well achieved and the CASP Project was completed in terms of BP 

guidelines (approved by the Department of Agriculture). 

 The Sorghum Plantation Project is progressing as required. 

 The Land Care Management Project is being regularly achieved (based on funding 

availability) 

 Great success has been achieved with the Qhunkqu Farm Development Project 

although the efforts to provide support with this proved to be a challenge. 

 The Siyazondla Harvesting Project has come to an end – and no budget was allocated 

for its completion. 

 The Siyakhula Harvesting Programme has not progressed and is currently managed 

by the Department of Agriculture. 

 A number of Department of Agriculture projects have been conducted and successes 

/challenges are detailed as follows: 

o The construction of the Ngqana Dipping Tank has been completed as required; 

and 

o Fencing in Zwart Water, Dubeni, Cacadu and Guba Hoek was complete and the 

handover process was currently underway. 

 Efforts to lobby for funding for the revitalization of local schemes, for the fencing of 

arable land and for the construction of shearing sheds (in priority areas) is underway 

– although there is no direct progress to date. 

 Promotion of the branding of cows is facilitated by the building of the necessary 

infrastructure for branding.  This is being well achieved although it is noted that 

funding constraints may affect progress. 
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 SMME development was promoted by reporting on the manner in which SMME 

support was provided.  

 Efforts to ensure that arable lands are fenced were undertaken although any cost 

implications are unknown. 

 
Tourism 

 
A number of projects/targets to support tourism have been undertaken.  These are 
reflected further as follows: 
 
 Completion of projects as per the Tourism Plan i.e. provision of inputs, materials, 

training support provisions and budget expenditure reports.  Progress in this regard 

was well achieved. 

 Difficulties continue to be experienced with the Guba Farms Project and both Chris 

Hani District Municipality and Emalahleni Municipality continue to experience 

difficulties with the beneficiaries – none of which is within their control. 

Town Planning 
 
In an effort to facilitate town planning and land use management, it was required that:  
 
 Land use management polices  be developed, adopted by Council and  

implemented/monitored in terms of the development of land use management 

systems; 

 Additionally it was required that a Land Audit be completed and verified. 

 
In both instances the target milestones were amended and while policy development 
and implementation is still underway (although on target), the land audit has been 
achieved as required.   
 
Statistics for Building Plans and Town Planning, the transfer of deeds and town registers 
and legislative reporting as per Circular 11 of the MFMA are addressed to a large extent. 
 
Town Planning is still in its infancy stage.  Notwithstanding quarterly statistics are 
completed and statistics are able to be provided regarding approvals, subdivisions and 
transfers.  Updating the server is underway and should facilitate this process further. 
 
While the IPED unit continues to face many challenges, it is fair to say that progress 
overall has been made and additional progress is required in order to ensure that the 
tourism and agricultural potential of Emalahleni Municipal area is realized. 
 
This can be achieved through the implementation of the LED Strategy and the Spatial 
Development Framework, however it is realized that in order for this to be conducted 
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successfully the necessary infrastructure, capacitation of staff and effective application 
of policies and procedures will be required. 
 
General comments and Challenges 

 
 The availability of LED expertise 
 Town Planning progressing to full functionality  
 Funding constraints continue to be a challenge as there is little budget provided for 

the reviewal of the IDP and related processes. 
 Existing projects have continued as per the SDBIP’s (i.e. as planned projects). 

 
 The challenges of monitoring and implementing all IDP & PMS compliance issues 

where little data has been present 
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6.5 BUDGET & TREASURY DEPARTMENT 

 

 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT STRUCTURE 

 
“Management of the financial resources in an efficient and professional manner while 
providing support to all departments in order to ensure that all legislation policies and 
procedures as prescribed by National Treasury are implemented and upheld” 
 

CFO: DEPARTMENTAL MANAGER:  M. LUDICK 

 
Functional Responsibilities  
 

 Revenue Collection/Income Generation 

 Expenditure 

 Budgeting 

 Accounting and Reporting 

 Information Technology 

 Assets and Risks 

 Supply Chain Management 
  

M Ludick 

CFO 

NG 
Sikunana 

Accountant 
– Exp. 

N Cebe 

Accountant 
– Inc. 

P 
Manakaza 

Budget 
Officer 

NC 
Mpangele 

SCM Officer 

Vacant  

Asset 
Management 

Officer 

Vacant 

Senior IT 
Officer 

B Twala/ Z Mejeni 

N Ntlabathi /V Fuma 

L Mateta 

Fin. Interns 

Vacant 

Ass. Fin. Mngr 
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Overall Objectives 2010/2011 
 
In order to achieve the objectives of the vision and mission of the Emalahleni Local 
Municipality, the office of the Finance Department seeks to deliver the following: 
 

 Develop all policies, procedures and by-laws required by the Municipal Finance Act 
(MFMA);  

 Implement all Regulations as issued by National Treasury; 

 Implement all policies and procedures as stipulated within the Municipal Finance 
Management Act (MFMA) and the Financial Regulations issued by National Treasury; 

 Give effect to all accounting principles as required by GAMAP/GRAP; 

 Ensure that a transparent, effective supply chain management system is 
implemented;  

 Ensure the effective, efficient and economic management of the monetary resources 
of the municipality; 

 Support all Departments of the Municipality to achieve their objectives specified 
within in their 5 year departmental strategic plan; 

 Manage and safeguard the assets of the municipality in order to ensure effective and 
economic delivery of services; 

 Maintain, support and upgrade the IT network and equipment of the municipality to 
ensure effective service delivery; 
 

PERFORMANCE REPORTING AND CHALLENGES 
 
In an ongoing effort to improve financial performance and management within the 
Emalahleni Local Municipality, issues raised within the Auditor General’s Report were 
translated into an Audit Action Plan for 2010/2011 and regular reporting was conducted in 
for 2009/2010 an effort to ensure that issues requiring attention would receive focus and 
be addressed in a coordinated fashion.  
 
It is acknowledged that issues requiring attention can be generally referred to as the 
need for regular and effective reporting and the need to ensure that information and 
data obtained and utilized is accurate and remains updated.  Systems and control are 
vitally important and it is required that these are upheld strictly in accordance with policy 
and procedures and the prescriptions of the MFMA. 
 
Within each functional area, progress, successes and challenges will be discussed. 
 
Revenue Collection and Income Generation 
 

 Ongoing focus and priority is paced on the implementation of the Revenue 

Enhancement Strategy.  It is recognized that as far as the community is concerned 

and acknowledging the limitations of this rate base due to high levels of poverty and 

unemployment, that efforts to increase revenue are vital for financial sustainability. 
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Effective revenue management strategies are required to be implemented and more 

specifically the revenue and credit control strategy.   This target has not been well 

achieved.  A workshop on the implementation of the credit control policy is required 

to be workshopped and implemented.  Efforts are required to be made to implement 

more effective debt collection through more effective billing, the Indigent Register  

is required to be updated and electricity cut-offs are to be effectively applied.  To 

date, cut offs are not extensively applied. 

The Debt Collection target of 40% has not been achieved and a level of 23% has been 

achieved.  This is due in part to the high levels of poverty, the need for data 

cleansing, updated statistics and due to political interference.   

 It is noted that the consumer database has been updated and data cleansing 
conducted to ensure that this information is updated;  

 The level of accuracy of Consumer accounts remains a challenge and these are 
considered to be 60% accurate in respect of billing.  Following a data cleansing 
process it is anticipated that this will be rectified; 

 The accuracy with which meter readings are conducted and inputted into SEBATA 
has only reached a level of 60% as opposed to the level of 98%. 

 In an effort to improve and maintain the effectiveness of the electronic data 
management system (SEBATA), meter readings that are inputted into SEBATA are 
monitored and checked regularly.  SEBATA has been appointed for 10 days a month 
to assist with this process and to ensure that any system anomalies are resolved 
(through provision of oversight and the monitoring of exception reports which are 
now being performed by the Debtors Clerk and the Chief Financial Officer.  

 The Indigent Policy was reviewed and a service provider has been appointed to 
engage in a data cleansing exercise in order to validate the accuracy of this register.  
7 000 indigents have been registered to date and controls are to be put in place to 
validate and effectively update these applications and registrations. 

 The Rates Policy was tabled for adoption and so to the Tariff Policy. 

 Staff have been capacitate in an ongoing commitment to training and development 
staff are participating in the “Minimum Competency Levels Training” as per MFMA 
Circular 47/14.2a 

 It is acknowledged that the accuracy of consumer accounts can only be fully 
achieved once the data clean-up and verification exercise is finalized.  

 Stricter controls in respect of cash and revenue management will provide an ongoing 
challenge. 

 
Expenditure and Control 
 
This function resides mainly in Lady Frere and is supported by three staff who are 
responsible for the payment of creditors, ordering goods, services and materials, 
processing monthly salaries and allowances, compiling and controlling budgets, 
controlling capital and other projects, processing of monthly and quarterly financial 
reports and the compilation of annual financial records and statements. 
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It is noted that:  

 100% of Capital Expenditure was included in the IDP by June 2011; 

 Authorized over-expenditure for MIG grant funding was approved; 

 Expenditure reporting was provided monthly and quarterly in respect of reports to 
the Mayor, Council, National Treasury and Provincial Treasury; 

 Corrections to the recording and processing of VAT were made; 

 SEBATA reports were provided in order to verify figures from the General Ledger and 
Trial Balance; 

 Appropriate training in respect of functional areas was provided to staff in an 
endeavor to heighten capacity; and 

 Any unauthorized, irregular or fruitless and wasteful expenditure identified was 
reported to the MEC for Local Government and data kept for record purposes.  A 
payment was made to a fraudster and a criminal case was made.  No disciplinary 
action was required to be taken against any employee following investigation.  
 

Budgeting 
 

This department is required to compile Councils operating and capital budget and to 
ensure that these are presented accurately and timeously. 
 
It is critically important that the Budget is aligned to the reviewed IDP in order to ensure 
that the strategic objectives are addressed through projects contained within the 
SDBIP’s that are in turn aligned to both IDP and Budget. 
 
Of critical importance is the development of the tariff structure and the review of this 
annually, in an effort to maintain a cash budget. 
 
Actual expenditure against the budget is monitored regularly and appropriate reporting 
is conducted in order to maintain controls. 

 

 Timelines in respect of the Budget and budget issues have been well achieved;  

 Public committees and consultation forums for Finance (IDP linked) have been 
established and well managed; 

 The following budget-related activities were achieved: 
o Alignment of budget to IDP 
o Service Delivery Agreements 
o Delegations 
o Budget-related Policies 
o Operational and capital budget 

 Tariffs were determined as per updated Policies; 

 The Budget and supporting documents were approved; 

 Budget and supporting documents were provided to : 
o National Treasury 
o Provincial Treasury 
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o Public  

 A Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP) was completed for 
Finance;  

 All 16 wards participated in the Budget process which illustrated an incredible 
improvement in public participation one additional ward was included after the 
elections in May 2011. 

 Senior Staff in the Budget &Treasury Department possess the required tertiary 
qualifications but lack practical ‘on the job” experience and this is to be attended to 
via coaching.  Ongoing capacitation exercises are arranged in order to facilitate this 
process; 

 Capacity issues and shortages of staff in the Budget & Treasury Department are to be 
addressed via training and development and will be regarded as critical; 

 Financial constraints remain a challenge.  As of June 2011 deficits of R245 674 016 
were accumulated and the total liabilities exceed its assets by R245 674 016 (as per 
AFS)  

 SDBIP Plans were not linked and aligned to Budget/IDP this can be achieved  
following more specific targets within the SDBIP;  

 Continuous  efforts are made to improve financial controls;   

 Policies are in place – policies developed and implemented during the  2010/2011 
financial year; 

 Service delivery agreements have been signed with the Department of Transport, 
Department of Arts & Sports and Library Services; 

 Legislative compliance as per MFMA requirements in respect of GRAP conversions 
have been extremely well achieved, while taking into account allowed concessions;  

 The Budget has been concluded in the new GRAP format; and  

 The Annual Financial Statement has been completed within required timeframes as 
legislated (2010 /2011).  

 
Accounting and Reporting  
 
It is acknowledged that a number of challenges are experienced when it comes down to 
the methods of establishing and maintaining accounting records and in respect of 
reporting. 
 
From a reporting point of view it is noted that in terms of the MFMA, regular reporting 
to the National Treasury, Provincial Treasury, to the Accounting Officer, the Executive 
Committee and Municipal Council is required (according to the prescriptions of the Act). 
 
Accordingly it is noted that reporting was conducted but not as consistently and 
timeously as required in respect of:  
 

 Monthly s71 reports; 

 S46 reports (Input received late – reporting not verifiable )  

 The AFS 

 SDBIP 
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 SCM reports; 

 Reports submitted to the Finance Standing Committee monthly; 

 Reports to Council quarterly; 

 Reports to Exco, monthly; 

 VAT Reconciliation reports which have been updated; and 
 
Difficulties are currently experienced with the following aspects of reporting and are to 
be resolved at the soonest opportunity: 
 

 S71 reports were not all done as required during 10/11 

 The s72 Report was submitted 2 months after the due date; 

 Monthly PM13 reports were not provided to Departmental Managers and these were 

to be used by managers together with SEBATA reports in order to reconcile budgets 

with SEBATA reports in order to manage budget expenditure.  

 
This appears to have occurred as a result of the issues concerning monthly reconciliation 
reports which are not provided as required. 
 
Monthly reconciliations of supporting registers are completed in respect of: 
 

 Funds 

 Loans 

 Assets 

 Banks 

 Investments 

 Debtors 

 Creditors and 

 Income and Expenditure 

 
Supply Chain Management 
 
The Supply Chain Policy and Procedure has been approved, although this is not fully 
applied.  Issus raised within the supply chain area include: 
 

 The SCM Committees for evaluation and adjudication and award have been 

established and are functioning , the effectiveness of the functioning is still a 

challenge due to capacity within the SCM division; 

 The SCM division lacks capacity and two staff members of this unit have been sent 

on CPMD training in order to facilitate skills development. 

 The Service Providers Database is being updated and maintained. 

 30% of tenders are being awarded to HDI’s and this target has been over-achieved; 



 

 386 

 SCM Committees are populated as required but turnaround time in awarding of bids 

requires to be improved. 

 Reporting on SCM functioning is not occurring as regularly as required; 

 Service Providers Reports and performance reporting are not recorded as sufficiently 

as required or in terms of the required format.  While departments are required to 

provide the required input regarding project management undertaken within their 

departments. A standard template is in place although it is noted that different 

departments completed this in different ways and in some instances by the use of 

different templates.  This is required to be addressed correctly.  While all 

consolidation of information is conducted by the Supply Chain Officer it must be 

emphasized that the SCM Officer is only able to utilize the information provided to 

her.  A “lack of” or incomplete information is just as damaging as no information In 

many instances the information has been left out and  that is why reporting becomes 

a target for auditors ---effectively constituting “poor reporting”. 

 
Information Technology 
 
The provision of information management and technological support is not currently 
well achieved and this function is not fully applied within al the units. Support provision 
is extensively applied by Chris Hani District Municipality. 
 
A number of issues are raised as follows; 
 

 Internet and email facilities are available to most staff, although network securities 

are still to be addressed at a higher level of functioning; 

 Funding is required in order to upgrade IT infrastructure and must be 

budgeted/sourced accordingly; 

 The SEBATA financial management system is functioning more effectively and 

SEBATA has been employed to provide regular on-site support and service in order to 

resolve any identified issue; 

 IT Training is required to be provided to the majority of staff in a coordinated manner 

in order to facilitate their IT skills and methods of functioning. 

 The municipal website is not functioning and in this regard levels of compliance have 

not been met. 

It is clear that a more consolidated and focused approach to IT issues is required to be 
undertaken and this will be required to be seen as an area of priority moving forward, 
with specific policies, procedures and appropriate training, monitoring and control 
 
Assets and Risks 
 

 The assets registers have been developed within all departments and are GRAP 

compliant; 
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 A service provider was appointed to perform an audit of all immovable assets in 

order to bring this information up to date.  Notwithstanding it appears that it is the 

maintenance and updating of this information that poses a challenge and is not done 

regularly by departments; and 

 Reconciliations of assets are not done regularly and this leads to a situation where 

assets are not disposed of correctly or timeously (by submitting disposals annually to 

the Chief Financial Officer for processing and tabling to Council). Reconciliations 

outstanding since October 2010 were only updated by December 2011, due to the 

appointment of a consultant. 

 
Disclaimer 
 
While attempts have been made to cross reference the information provided with the 
information depicted in the Annual Financial Statements and the quarterly performance 
reports, there are instances where this was not possible and it was required that the 
information be accepted at face value. 
 
In certain instances there is a lack of base data and where this data is provided its accuracy 
should be determined and verified.  
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6.6 Technical Services Department 
 
 

 
Technical Services Manager: Mr W. Mkuyana 

 
 
 “To render affordable and sustainable basic services to the community and internal 

departments by enhancing community participation in collaboration with internal 
departments through partnership and consultation in order to achieve good results 
and instill ownership.” 

 
 Functional Responsibilities 
 
 The areas of focus include: 

 Facilitation of infrastructure development (where it is not within our power and 

function); 

 To create new infrastructure within our competence; and to maintain existing 

infrastructure in areas defined below. 

 
o Project management  

o Water and Sanitation; 

o Electricity and Street lighting (reticulation and distribution); 

o Roads and storm water; and 

o Processing building plans and quality monitoring. 

NW Mkuyana 

Technical 

Manager 

MA Zwakala 

Building Control 

Vacant 

Housing 

& Estates 

Vacant 

Water &  

Sanitation 

MJ Bekker 

Senior Electrician 

L Matyaba 

PMU Manager 

  

TT Maqwazima 

Admin. Off. 
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Overall Objectives 2010/2011 
 

 Infrastructure planning in order to meet the community needs as prioritized; 

 Implementation and monitoring of capital projects; 

 Budget control of capital projects; 

 Policy formulation for infrastructure development and service delivery; 

 Project management of local infrastructure projects, including: 

-  Major infrastructure repairs and/or rehabilitation projects 
-  New infrastructure projects 
 

 Oversight on CHDM and Housing implemented infrastructure projects; 

 Management and maintenance of municipal assets re – infrastructure (roads and 

stormwater drainage systems, pumps for sewer and water, bulk water storage 

facilities, water treatment plants, water line networks, waste water treatments 

plants, electricity distribution network and streetlights, buildings, road maintenance, 

plant and other operating plant and vehicles, and ensuring OHSA compliance in all 

municipal operations; 

 Housing Unit management, by managing the development and maintenance of 

human settlements.  This includes:  

 Coordination of Housing Delivery (private developers and other parties); 

 Provision of support in managing housing provision; 

 Promoting the sourcing of land for land reform programmes, 

 Monitoring the development of slum conditions in existing settlements;     

 Assessment of housing needs;  

 Building Control Management by ensuring compliance with the National 

Building Regulations as well as the Housing Consumer Protection 

Measures Act; 

 Housing quality control (House  construction for private and public 

building developments); and 
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 Management of the demolitions and the building permit system 

throughout Emalahleni. 

 
PERFORMANCE REPORTING AND CHALLENGES 
 
The Technical Services Department is responsible for both external and internal 
technical service delivery projects that may fall within this department.   
 
Management of Funds 
 
It is recognized that this department is required to engage in projects of an extremely 
high capital value and funding is limited under normal circumstances at best.  Funding is 
sourced and obtained from the following role-players: 
 

 Municipal revenue from rates and taxes; 

 Equitable share from National Treasury, Chris Hani District Municipality, MIG and 

equitable share; 

 Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG); 

 Department of Housing, Local Government, and Traditional Affairs; 

 Department of Minerals and Energy; 

 Department of Roads and Transport; and 

 Development Bank of South Africa. 

 
Throughout this period, funding was strictly managed and expenditure reported on in 
keeping with the requirements and prescriptions of the donor funder. 
 
Project Management Unit 
 
This unit serves to address the administrative and project needs attached to the large 
number of projects undertaken, their high value and the number of sponsors/donor 
funders (all with specific reporting requirements of their own).  The unit is formally 
required to be able to address all of these needs. 

 Infrastructure planning was conducted according to prioritized needs of the 

community; 

 Capital projects were implemented and monitored and managed in terms of project 

deliverables and budgetary control; and 
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 Organizational reporting was conducted regularly in the manner required. 

 
The PMU unit successfully administers, project manages and reports on project progress 
in the manner required.  
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CAPITAL BUDGET - 2010/2011 

MIG PROJECTS  

Project Name Status 
2010/11 

Allocation  
2010/11 

Expenditure 
Comments 

Indwe Rehabilitation of Roads & Stormwater 
Phase 2 

Termination R 2 000 000 R 137 769.00 Due to lack of commitment by 
the appointed contractor, the 
letter of termination  has been 
issued and the PSP has 
submitted draft tender 
document for retendering and 
anticipate construction to 
commence March 2011 

Emalahleni Ward 2 & 10 Sanitation Tender R 1 500 000 R 0 Baseline Survey is complete 
and groundwater protocol is in 
progress.  Tender for 
consortium has closed on the 
23/7/10.  Expect appointment 
end October 2010.  Anticipate 
construction to commence on 
December 2010. 

Cacadu Villages Water Construction R 2 000 000 R 529 323 Contractor has delayed on 
progress and construction was 
to be completed by end 
September 2010 

Mckays Nek Sanitation Construction R 8 000 000 R 0 Construction in progress and 
was to be completed by 
August 2011 

 

/Cont. 
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CAPITAL BUDGET - 2010/2011 

MIG PROJECTS  

Project Name Status 
2010/11 

Allocation  
2010/11 

Expenditure 
Comments 

Vukani Bulk Services Water Tender R 2 000 000 R 55 000 The actual construction is 
complete for phase 1.  Second 
phase is at adjudication stage 
and it was anticipated for the 
construction to commence by 
November 2010 

Qoqodala Access Road Construction R 1 500 000 R 201 310.00 Contractor busy with snags 
and anticipate completing by 
end September 2010. 

Dubeni Access Road Design R 1 000 000 R 496 376.00 PSP presented design report 
and waiting for inputs from 
Department of Roads and 
Transport.  Project to be 
registered with MIG.  
Expecting advertisement end 
October 2010.  Anticipate 
construction to commence 
beginning May 2011. 

Cluster 4 Sanitation (Wards 2,3,4,5,15,16, Vukani 
Guba & Percy Villages) 

Tender R 5 000 000 R 326 729.00 Baseline Survey is complete 
and groundwater protocol is in 
progress.  Tender for 
consortium closed on 23 July 
2010.  It was anticipated that 
construction was to 
commence in December 2010. 

 

Cont. 



 

 394 

 

CAPITAL BUDGET - 2010/2011 

MIG PROJECTS  

Project Name Status 
2010/11 

Allocation  
2010/11 

Expenditure 
Comments 

Cluster 3 Sanitation (Wards 7,8,9,10,11,12,13 & 14) Tender R 5 000 000 R 210 003.00 Baseline Survey is complete 
and groundwater protocols is 
in progress.  Tender for 
consortium closed on 23 July 
2010.  It was anticipated that 
construction was to 
commence in December 2010. 

Cluster 1 Water backlog (Wards 7,8,10, 13,14) Design and 
Tender 

R 4 000 000 R 411 866.63 Agnes Rest and Buffeldoring 
sub clusters has been 
advertised on 17 September 
2010 and it was anticipated 
that construction was to 
commence in January 2011.  
The project is currently 
registered and waiting for 
DWAF recommendations and 
MIG approval  

Cluster 2 Water backlog (Wards 1,2,4 & 6) Evaluation R 4 000 000 R 236 727.00 Regional scheme 3 phase 1A 
(five priority villages) was on 
evaluation and it was 
anticipated that construction 
was to commence January 2011  
The project is currently 
registered and waiting for 
DWAF recommendations and 
MIG approval 

 

/Cont. 
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CAPITAL BUDGET - 2010/2011 

MIG PROJECTS  

Project Name Status 
2010/11 

Allocation  
2010/11 

Expenditure 
Comments 

Cluster 2 Sanitation (Wards 1 & 6) Tender  R 3 000 000 R 0 Baseline Survey and 
groundwater protocol are 
complete.  Tender for 
consortium closed by 23 July 
2010.  Anticipated that 
construction was to 
commence in October 2010. 

Upgrade of Dordrecht WWTW and Augmentation 
of Existing Water Supply 

Design & 
EIA 

R 7 400 000 R 489 952.51 Scoping report for upgrade of 
WWTW has been approved 
and waiting for full EIA 
approval.  Anticipated that the  
construction was to 
commence in May 2011 
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Roads and Stormwater 
 
Emalahleni Local Municipality faced many infrastructure challenges, not the least of 
which relate to funding and resources.  A number of targets were fully complied with in 
respect of roads and stormwater, notwithstanding challenges relating to: financial 
limitations, limited availability of maintenance equipment; poor and ageing 
infrastructure, and geographical and climatic conditions. 
 
Achievements and challenges and reflected below as follows: 
 

 Paving of the Indwe Road (EPWP) and the recruitment of participants; 

 Paving of the Dordrecht Road (EPWP) and recruitment of participants; 

 The final delivery for the road construction at Mdantsane and Mackey’s Neck was 

completed as scheduled; 

 The construction of the substructure (first delivery) of Qoboshane Bridge was 

completed timeously;  

 The surfacing of roads was well met as per target; 

 The construction of the approved access roads was well achieved; 

 The area wide maintenance of access roads had not been well achieved.  This project 

remains under the control of the Department of Roads and Transport and no 

progress reporting was provided; 

 The Qoqodala Access Road Project was progressing well and was completed 

timeously; 

 The Dubeni Access Road was in the design phase.  Construction has occurred as 

anticipated in May and is progressing well; 

 The Trust Access Road and Stormwater construction was completed; 

 The Ida Access Road was completed; 

 Due to budget constraints (to be addressed within the new financial year), the storm 

water project in Lady Frere was not fully completed and stands at 30% incomplete; 

 The construction of the internal streets and storm water at 700 units (in Bongo 

Lwethu) was only completed up to 25%, due to delays within procurement and delays 

in the release of funds by the Department of Human Settlements; 



 

 397 

 The construction of stormwater and paving in the Lady Frere Indwe Road, was 

achieved as per required targets; 

 55% surfacing of access road of Indwe to Mavuya township was completed as 

required; 

 The Steel Bridge at Benqu was constructed by the Department of Transport prior to 

the target and the construction of access roads and related infrastructure were 

completed at Ntlanjeni, Ngqoko and Ngcalasoyi as per requirements. 

 Bridges in the priority areas of Ntlanjenu to Qoboshana Road were to be completed 

by February 2011.  Due to adverse weather conditions and floods/disasters these 

timeframes were affected although the bridge was well constructed.  
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Backlogs in Paving of Streets 
 

Required Budget 
Budget Amount Actual Expenditure 

R1 300 000.00 R1 300 000.00 R476 000.00 

 
The Department of Public Works is delaying some payments for EPWP programmes 

 
Remedial Action 

 
CHDM and the contractor are attempting  to address the situation. 

 
 

INDICATORS HOUSEHOLDS 
TOTAL NO. 

REQUIRED 
BUDGET 

BUDGET 
AMOUNT 

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURE 

Civil Engineering Services:(PMU) 
Establishment and management of Civil Engineering Services:- 

Ward 13 Qoboshane Bridge Phase 1 540 R5 344 597.00 R5 344 597.00 R5 344 597.00 

Ward 11 Sinako Dordrecht Surfaced 
Road. 

813 R5 970 059.00 R5 970 057.00 R5 344 597.00 

Ward 15 Indwe Mavuya surfaced Road 331 R6 239 613.00 R6 239 613.00 R6 239 613.00 

Ward 16 Indwe-Resort Surfaced and 
Paved Road 

3000 R6 429 266.00 R6 429 266.00 R6 429 266.00 

Ward 04 Lady Frere Internal Streets & 
Stormwater 

700 R8 064 373.00 R8 064 373.00 R8 064 373.00 

Ward13 Qoboshane Bridge Phase 2 540 R8 857 113.00 R8 857 113.00  

Ward 2 Multi-Purpose Hall  R2 418 421.00 R2 418 421.00 R2 418 421.00 

Ward 9 Multi-Purpose Hall  R2,035,759.95 R2,035,759.95 R2,035,759.95 

Ward 12 Multi Purpose Hall  R2,518,094.00 R2,518,094.00 R2,518,094.00 

Ward 11 Multi Purpose Hall 1848 R2,291,990.00 
 

R2,291,990.00 
 

R2,291,990.00 
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Housing  
 
Many projects were required to rectify badly built houses.  These include: 
 

 Rectification of Lady Frere - LF 715 recti Assessment completed subject to Dept. of 

Human settlements. /presentation on findings - village scoping report to be 

prepared by SP 

 Sinako Zwelwthemba ph-1   - Sinako Zwelethemba  289 - feasibility study  to start 

/PSP submit layout plan /registering & capturing  beneficiaries /contractor to be 

appointed once all stages are completed 

 Mavuya ph-1 &2 - 462  - 224 beneficiaries - project at tender stage (awaiting 

comments from ELM & Dept. on tender documentation) 

 Zwaartwater Rural This project will phased in phase 2: scoping/design report 

/consultative planning /business plan developed   

 Rectification the construction Lady Frere new (ward 5) -Ongoing project / 405 

houses completed 114 houses at various stages of completion  

 200 new erven surveyed and serviced – this is well achieved 

 It was required that Emalahleni Municipality inspect all houses that were constructed 

in order to ensure compliance with NHBRC and CIDB.  Accordingly the 149 houses 

built were evaluated in terms of compliance. 

 In order to facilitate access to land for housing, Emalahleni Municipality was required 

to review the housing plan and to build capacity of all housing staff and contractors. 

 
It must be noted that this competency lies with the DPHLG and accordingly the Housing 
Sector Plan was provided in draft in August 2011, due to delays/budget constraints by the 
Department of Human Settlements. . 

 
Building Control  

 
This unit remains responsible for the development of the local built environment, 
through the following activities: 

 Public education, promoting compliance with National Building Regulations and 

Agreement Certificates (Rural Areas), as well as effecting compliance with the Housing 

Consumer Protection Measures Act (All houses are built by NHBRC registered 

Contractors; 
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 Development of Appropriate Building Technology suitable for areas where the national 

Building Regulations are not applicable; 

 Quality control of House construction in Housing Projects; 

 Municipal assets maintenance including municipal buildings, dipping tanks, disaster 

houses etc.;  

 Quality Control of all other private and public building developments; 

 Manages demolishing and building permit system throughout Emalahleni; 

 
 

 
Required Budget Budget Amount 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Building Control:-    

% GIS updates sent to IT section 
(Capturing of Rural and Town 
Road 

R524 000.00 R524 000.00 R524 000.00 

 
Fleet Management 
 

 Although a Fleet Management Policy is in place it is noted that this is not fully 

implemented.  Regular monitoring and quarterly reporting is required in order to 

ensure that the municipal fleet are managed effectively. 

 As required, a Vehicle Tracking system has been installed in 8 vehicles. 

 
Electricity and Street Lighting 
 
Emalahleni Local Municipality is required to ensure electricity provision to the two towns 
of Indwe and Dordrecht.  Remaining areas (Lady Frere and surrounding villages) are 
required to be supplied by Eskom and the department’s role is to supply implementation 
and monitoring (as per the Turnkey Project). 
 
General Issues and Challenges 
 
 Infrastructure is old and severe winds cause damage to power lines when trees are 

blown on these, together with power outages and weakness due to the high winds. 

 It remains a challenge to address the backlogs and to ensure that the standards of 

electricity provision and service are equally matched between urban and rural areas.  

The development of the SDBIP addresses this in a coordinated and planned manner 

over time. 


